TOWN OF HOPE MILLS
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT SPECIAL MEETING
MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2019 6:00 P.M.
LUTHER BOARD MEETING ROOM
________________________________________________________________________

CALL TO ORDER –
1.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA-

2.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES- Monday, May 21, 2018 and October 22, 2018.
TAB 1

3.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS-

4.

PUBLIC HEARINGCASE P19-01-HM: CONSIDERATION OF A SIDEWALK VARIANCE IN A
C(P) PLANNED COMMERICAL DISTRICT ON 5.96+/- ACRES, LOCATED
AT 3333 N MAIN STREET; SUBMITTED BY J. ARTHUR SMITH ON
BEHALF OF HOPE MILLS INVESTMENTS, LLC (OWNER) AND DARREN
BALSAMO ON BEHALF OF LEVEL 5 TRAMPOLINE PARK, LLC (AGENT).
(HOPE MILLS) TAB 2

5.

ADJOURNMENT-

TAB 1

TOWN OF HOPE MILLS
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING
MONDAY, MAY 21, 2018, 6:00 P.M.
WILLIAM F. “BILL” LUTHER, JR. AND DORIS LUTHER BOARD MEETING
ROOM
Chairman Mike Mitchell called the regular meeting of the Hope Mills Board of
Adjustment meeting to order Monday, May 21, 2018 at 6:02 p.m.
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
Chairman Mike Mitchell, Board members Jessie Bellflowers, Pat Edwards, Meg Larson
and Jerry Legge.
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Town Manager Melissa Adams, Administrative Assistant/Acting Deputy Town Clerk
Tiffany Gillstedt, Development & Planning Administrator Chancer McLaughlin. Also
present was Town Attorney Dan Hartzog, Jr.
1.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

Motion made by Board member Edwards, seconded by Board member Larson and
carried unanimously, to approve the agenda as presented.
2.

PUBLIC HEARING.

CASE P17-03-HM: CONSIDERATION OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A
BILLBOARD IN A C(P) PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ON 0.96+/- ACRES,
LOCATED AT 2702 HOPE MILLS ROAD, SUBMITTED BY JOSHUA A & ERIKA L
JACKSON ON BEHALF OF JACKSON ESTATES LLC (OWNER) AND JOSEPH
STANCIL ON BEHALF OF INTERSTATE OUTDOOR INC (AGENT). (HOPE
MILLS).
Development & Planning Administrator Chancer McLaughlin presented an overview of
Case P17-03-HM commenting the subject property is located at the northwest side of
George Owen Road and Hope Mills Road. The parcel of land is zoned under C(P)
district regulations and developed with the existing Jackson Automotive body shop.
Board member Larson commented of the two site plans before her, the first did not
meet all conditions for approval. Development & Planning Administrator McLaughlin
responded the first site plan was submitted by Mr. Joseph Stancil. The second site plan
was submitted and approved by the Town of Hope Mills in 2004 for the current, existing
development.
Commissioner Legge inquired whether the Town has received any complaints regarding
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the appearance of the current site. Development & Planning Administrator McLaughlin
responded the Town has received correspondence of opposition to the case but no formal
complaints.
Commissioner Larson inquired whether the applicant had been cited for not being in
compliance with the original site plan. Development & Planning Administrator
McLaughlin responded the applicant has not received official notice as planning staff was
initially unaware of the magnitude until the official case had been filed.
Chairman Mitchell opened the floor for comments on Case P17-03-HM.
Administrative Assistant/Acting Deputy Town Clerk Tiffany Gillstedt swore in Joseph
Stancil, Paul Cuomo, Warren Stancil and Joshua Jackson.
Craig Justus, Attorney to the applicant Joseph Stancil submitted exhibits 1 and 2, the
Town of Hope Mills Zoning Ordinance and P17.33, an amendment to the
Zoning Ordinance.
Mr. Justus : Mr. Chairman just so we all have in the record sort of the ground rules, the
standards for the Town, I have made copies of the Town Zoning Ordinance. I had
realized that what you had online didn’t reflect the change that took place August of last
year when you straightened out the matrix. If you remember, it had a “Z” in the column
instead of an “S” and so this Board decided to make that change back in August. So I
have a copy of what was online which I’ll want to mark as exhibit number one and Dan
was kind enough to provide me with a copy of the change that took place in August 2017
so that’s sort of an amendment to exhibit one since you don’t have it reflected online yet.
So I’d like to tender the Zoning Ordinance and Amendment as exhibits one and two to
the Town Clerk or secretary?
Town Manager Melissa Adams: Deputy Clerk. Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Deputy Clerk.
Mr. Justus: And Chancer I wasn’t able to ask you any questions if I may. I apologize
these things get a little awkward in terms of the two step dance we’ll have to do with the
podium we have here. So Chancer, in terms of the application of my client, there’s in
the Ordinance a section on billboard use in the Town of Hope Mills and in terms of the
various standards that are in the Town ordinance which I believe is section 102A-1407.
Is that right? Alright, well here’s a copy of the ordinance that we just introduced.
Section 102A-1407 and I have an extra copy in case someone wants to take a gander.
Mr. Justus distributed the Zoning to the Hope Mills Board of Adjustment board members.
Board Member Bellflowers: Thank you very much, sir.
Mr. Justus: This is on page 133. So in terms of the standards that are in section 102A2
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1407 for billboards within the Town, does my clients application comply with those
standards to the bet of your knowledge?
Mr. McLaughlin: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Okay and of course it’s our belief we do comply with those particular
Standards for billboard use in the Town. Now, Chancer in terms of the property in
question, the staff report I see noted there are no zoning violations pertaining to this
property. Is that right?
Mr. McLaughlin: It says not an issue.
Mr. Justus: Okay. So there’s not many zoning violations. So when you go through and
you look at the historical file have you seen any zoning violation that was ever issued for
this piece of property?
Mr. McLaughlin: I think I spoke to that earlier. To date there have been no official
zoning violations issued.
Mr. Justus: Okay. Now I believe heard from one or two of the Commissioners that this
location is a fairly prominent location in the Town of Hope Mills. Is that right? Now in
terms of the zoning of the property, it is C(P) and that is a general use district in the Town
is that right?
Mr. McLaughlin: I need to speak into the mic. It’s considered the planned commercial
district. That’s correct.
Mr. Justus: Alright but that is not a conditional zoning district.
Mr. McLaughlin: No.
Mr. Justus: Because it would have a “CZ” if it was a conditional zoning district, correct?
Mr. McLaughlin: Conditional zonings are adopted on individual processes but it would
have a “CZ” if it was considered conditional zoning, that’s correct.
Mr. Justus: Alright. So relating to the billboard in terms of the driveway, let me ask you
this Chancer because it was unclear when you talk about having discovered or because of
this application there are things that you now look at for this piece of property. What are
the issues associated with this piece of property in your opinion?
Mr. McLaughlin: One thing I’d like to also point out is the difference between
conditional zoning and draft conditions. Conditional zoning is a specific zoning
classification that can’t be filed unless up front there are mutually agreed upon
conditions. Draft conditions are conditions that are applied to any approval of any
project. With respect to the 2004 site plan approval, it was not apporoved as conditional
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zoning but there were draft conditions that applied to that property that it would need to
meet in order for it to be an approvable property in compliance under the commercial
zoning. Some of the things that actually listed was that the vegetation shown on the
approved site plan in 2004 has been removed. The rear driveway off of Hope Mills Road
approved in 2004 does not appear to be the location that was put in because if you look
here (referring to site plan on projector) that driveway off of Hope Mills Road is a
double in and out driveway, it was not constructed to that level. The vegetation like I
said has been removed, the parking lot was supposed to be paved and it has not been
paved. So those are not conditions that were put on from a conditional zoning standpoint
those are just general conditions that would have to be adhered to for you to actually be
in compliance with a general approval in commercial zoning.
Mr. Justus: Alright, well let’s break that down. In terms of landscaping there are
standards for let’s just take the billboard use since that’s what we’re talking about today.
In terms of landscaping standards for billboard use, what would they be?
Mr. McLaughlin: To my understanding there are no standards for a billboard use. The
standards that are not in compliance are the standards that apply to the landscaping for
the approved 2004 for Jackson Automotive.
Mr. Justus: These are the same standards you’re saying that there’s never been a zoning
violation since 2004?
Mr. McLaughlin: The standards that that notice for a zoning violation has never been
issued. Now that does not mean that they are not in violation, it just meant that there is
no official notice of violation submitted to the owner of the property.
Mr. Justus: Alright, so in terms of the owner of the property. If he complies with the
streetscape require of your landscaping code, is that what he needs to do in terms of
complying with your landscaping?
Mr. McLaughlin: Just for landscaping but I would refer you to the draft ordinance
conditions, specifically the 2004 letter in the packet from Roy Taylor that outlined all the
actual things that needed to be complied with. I don’t want to give the impression that
landscaping issue is the only outstanding issue for this site.
Mr. Justus: Well I want to be clear and I apologize, these things get somewhat awkward
and there’s not a lot of time to provide any background to ya and I apologize for that.
But at the end of the day Chancer, are you saying that what was done in 2004 are
conditions that were in place, put on this piece of property that are different than what is
required of a general commercial use on that piece of property.
Mr. McLaughlin: No I would not say that would differ at all. If you develop a
commercial establishment today you’re gonna have to pave the parking. If you do a
commercial establishment today you’re going to have to put in sidewalks, you’re going to
have to have landscaping requirements. So that’s why I wanted to make sure I
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highlighted that these are not conditional zoning conditions. Conditional zoning
conditions are conditions that are specifically generated for one specific piece of
property. General conditions that are generated for any approval would apply to any
commercial establishment. Now the specific conditions do trigger based on what is
developer but most of these conditions are general conditions that would apply to any
commercial development in C(P) in the Town of Hope Mills.
Mr. Justus: So that, so when you go through this when this is for a billboard application
and I think you indicated that we are compliant with all the standards for billboard use on
this piece of property.
Mr. McLaughlin: I think the issue is that because billboards are considered a principal
use, the development was processed as a group development which means that it pulls in
everything with that particular site. If you look at the draft conditions it also states that
the site plan that you submitted is not in compliance with or at least doesn’t match the
approval of the 2014 or 2004 site plan that’s up on the screen now. So it’s processed as a
group development which is what you have to do when you have two principal structures
on a site that’s when you have to look at the site in its totality.
Mr. Justus: Alright so if you could show me there in the billboard ordinance section
where it says anything about pulling us in as a group development.
Mr. McLaughlin: I don’t think the billboards section is going to talk about group
developments, it just basically speaks to the specific regulation that applied to the
billboard so you’re not gonna find that section in the billboard section in terms of what
happens if its pulled into a group development. It just means that when you develop
more than one principal use on a commercial lot, it’s deemed to be a group development.
Mr. Justus: So are there landscaping requirements associated with billboards, yes or no?
Mr. McLaughlin: No.
Mr. Justus: Is there parking lot standards associated with billboards?
Mr. McLaughlin: No.
Mr. Justus: Are there driveway conditions in the Town of Hope Mills ordinance
associated with billboards?
Mr. McLaughlin: No.
Mr. Justus: So in terms of, again, just summarizing. In terms of the standards that are in
the ordinance specific to billboards as it relates to distance from other billboards in the
C(P) district; as it relates to being located on a major thoroughfare or higher
classification; as it relates to the specific standards of how high it’s gonna be, how large it
can be; this application meets all of those standards.
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Mr. McLaughlin: Correct. I would say the application meets the standards that apply to
billboards but because the application was processed as a group development, it must
comply with everything that is associated with the development of the site.
Mr. Justus: And again, I’ve asked you where in the ordinance so you can point that out.
Where that you processed this as a group development. Where in the ordinance does it
say that.
Mr. McLaughlin: I would have to find group developments but my understanding to
your question is whether or not the billboards section spoke to group developments which
it does not.
Mr. Justus: Okay. Anywhere in the ordinance where you’re tying us to the automotive
place that has been there for going on over a decade. Where in the ordinance are you
tying us to that?
Mr. McLaughlin: In the Subdivision Ordinance. Basically it indicates that you have to
have a complete site plan. And I think group developments are covered in the
Subdivision Ordinance not the Town of Hope Mills Ordinance but the whole issue is that
when you have more than one principal use on a subject property, the only way to
process it is as a group development otherwise you can have one..the billboard is not
considered to be an accessory structure. So because you have a billboard on a
commercial development site it’s considered to be a principal use just like the actual
Jackson Automotive.
Mr. Justus: I understand. The Zoning Ordinance that you have in front of you, where in,
because we’re not subdividing land. Would you agree with that Chancer, we didn’t file a
subdivision plan to subdivide any property, right?
Mr. McLaughlin: And I think that’s the reason why its processed as a group development.
Mr. Justus: So where in this Zoning Ordinance does it tie us to these standards that you’re
referring to?
Mr. McLaughlin: I would have to go get the Subdivision Ordinance. Let me see. Hold
on one second.
Mr. Justus: Mr. Chairman, while he is. Just to speed things along, while he is looking
into that and we of course object to the fact that we have been tied to apparently
something out in the ah, space that’s been hanging over this piece of property since 2004.
And we have and I would say that Mr. Jackson the land owner is here; will testify about
this particular piece of property. But that site plan that you see that was part of the staff
report; Mr. Jackson doesn’t own all of the property that’s shown on that site plan. He
doesn’t own the property where the driveway is shown on that site plan so of course he
could not put the driveway where it’s shown on that site plan. And I want to make it
clear out of the gate, my client is willing to agree to any reasonable condition that this
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Board wants to put on their use which includes us having to go to Department of
Transportation to get approval for driveway access, period. Now, go ahead, Chancer.
Mr. McLaughlin: In the Section 102A-107 under Section B, it actually indicates the
Chief Building Inspector shall review all applications for a Zoning Permit for any
purpose regulated in this ordinance in chapter 18-86 for conformity with this ordinance in
Chapter 86. I’ll skip down. It does indicate that the Chief Building Inspector to ascertain
whether the proposed activity is in conformance with the ordinance in Chapter 86, it must
have the actual shape, location, dimension of the lot; shape, size and location of all
buildings or other structures to be erected, altered or moved in any building other or other
structure already on the lot. So what’s at hand here is, without a subdivision we can’t
look at this as separate pieces of property. We’re looking at is as the development or the
further development of an existing property. I’m not sure; I can look at the ownership of
the subject property in terms of the area where that small portion of the parking lot is led
on to. But I would question how was it approved if they did not have title or at least
some ability or at least to represent themselves as to having the authority to develop it.
This is the site plan that was ultimately approved in 2004. Whether they owned it or not,
that does not mean they didn’t actually include it in the proposal that was ultimately
approved.
Mr. Justus: Chancer, in terms of the section we just looked at and I just want to be clear,
we have a court reporter here so I’m gonna try to speak up and she’ll probably raise her
hand if somebody is speaking that she can’t hear. But Chancer, in terms of the section
you looked at which is section 102A-107, right? Is that yes?
Mr. McLaughlin: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Alright. So if you go to the special use permits sections of the code, that’s
not that section is it? That’s not the section dealing with special use permit is it? Well
isn’t special use permits contained in section 102A-1706?
Mr. McLaughlin: That is correct.
Mr. Justus: And when you look in terms of 102A-1706 in terms of the standards to be
applied to special use permits, it mentions specifically in subsection B that the special use
permits shall be granted by the Board of Adjustment as permitted for only those uses
enumerated in section 102A-403. And then in the next paragraph it says the owners of
the property and I’ll paraphrase, that are filing an application for a special use permit
shall submit an application in accordance with the specifications in 102A-1503, right? Is
that yes?
Mr. McLaughlin: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And in terms of our application, we submitted an application in compliance
with 102A-1503, right?
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Mr. McLaughlin: What was that section?
Mr. Justus: 102A-1503.
Mr. McLaughlin: That’s correct.
Mr. Justus: That section is called Site Plan Review and it lists the various things that we
are to include. And so we in fact met the standards in 102A-1503, right?
Mr. McLaughlin: One thing that I would say is that.
(Attorney Hartzog interjects)
Mr. Hartzog: Chancer before you speak, I feel the need to object to any questions to
Chancer asking for legal conclusions about whether a particular ordinance requirement
was met or not. I’ll lodge that objection with the Chair he can rule on it accordingly.
Chairman Mitchell: I would ask that you direct those to our Town Attorney in regards to
our ordinances.
Mr. Justus: To ask him those questions?
Chairman Mitchell: As to what is in our ordinances.
Mr. Justus: Well the ordinances sort of speak for themselves. Chancer got up here and
started saying why, I was asking him about group developments cause he got up and said
“well this is a group development” and I said “where in the zoning ordinance is a group
development standards mentioned?” He then said “it’s not there, it’s in the subdivision
ordinance,” so I then said “well where are you tying us down to this, his interpretation
that it’s a group development.” And by the way all the staff information that we’ve
received and in the staff report no one has ever mentioned to us this particular
interpretation this is a new one. And so when I ask “where is it,” he then goes to the
zoning permit section and I, that’s why I said “but that’s not what it says in the special
use permit section.” So I’m fine with just cutting it off at this point in time because I’ll
make argument later on, Mr. Chairman. Um, go ahead.
Mr. McLaughlin: From that the section that he just directed us, I’d like to read from
section 102A-1503, the development plan shall show and careful reviewing shall be
given to the following: proposed land uses, location of variance land uses and their types
and densities, proposed circulation patterns for vehicles and pedestrians including
providing for the interconnectivity of drives and parking areas by means of lateral access,
proposed parks and other common areas. I’ll skip down further, layout of motor vehicle
parking and loading areas, service areas, entrances, exits, yards, courts, landscaping. So,
I’m reading from the section that you highlight and I’m going back to our initial issue of
the site plan not matching what was approved. So if we’re going to this section it still
requires that the location of these parking and loading areas and things of that nature be
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directly reflected with respect to what was approved in 2004. If you notice in your
packet, one of the main reasons that this is an issue is because they’re saying that the site
plan that was submitted does not reflect what was submitted in 2004. Furthermore, aside
from all of this, the ordinance that governs the Board of Adjustments gives the Board the
right to impose any conditions that they see fit. So I think that’s where staff’s opinion
lies with this particular case.
Mr. Justus: Chancer, before you run off we submitted a site plan for a special use permit
for a billboard, correct?
Mr. McLaughlin: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And in terms of motor vehicle parking and loading areas there is no
requirement to have a parking lot depicted on a site plan for a billboard use, correct?
Mr. McLaughlin: When you choose a site that has an existing principal use and that site
has not been subdivided off, we’re looking at it as a group development and one overall
site. So if you were submitting a site plan that had been subdivided off from a
commercial location and that billboard was the only use on that site then what you just
said would stand. But I would not say that I agree that you submitted a site plan for a
billboard, you submitted a site plan that was deemed a group development because there
are two principal structures. One principle structure existed on the site and a proposed
principle structure on the same site.
Mr. Justus: So at any point in time ‘cause this hearing may go for another hour, if any
point in time, Chancer, you find in the Zoning Ordinance where you can tie us to group
development, please let us know because right now we’re not aware of any standard in
the Zoning Ordinance that ties us to some newly interpreted group development
standards. Alright, I’ll move on. I’ll ask Joseph Stancil to come up. Mr. Chairman I
have five notebooks with information.
Board member Legge: There’s six, we need one for Dan.
Town Manager Adams: We need one for the record.
Mr. Justus: Alright, Joseph, if you’ll just introduce to the Board who you are.
Mr. Joseph Stancil: Joseph Stancil on behalf of Interstate Outdoor Incorporated, I’m the
applicant for the billboard.
Board member Legge: I’m sorry, I can’t hear you.
Mr. Stancil: Joseph Stancil, I am the applicant for the billboard sign.
Mr. Justus: Alright so looking at the packet, I’m just going to have you identify some
things and we’ll talk about your particular application. In the packet we just handed up to
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the Board behind tab one is that a copy of the original special use permit application that
was tendered to the Town of Hope Mills?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Go ahead.
Mr. Stancil: Yes, that is the original application I submitted in June 2017.
Mr. Justus: Alright behind tab number 2A, is this a copy of the Interstate Outdoor lease
for the subject property?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Behind tab 2B, is this a copy of the deed of the landowner, Jackson Estates,
LLC for the subject property?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Before we move too far away from the parcel identification number. You had
put on here, on the application that, there was one parcel that you were identifying as part
of your application, correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Subsequent to that, someone associated with the Town amended the
application to add a second parcel?
Mr. Stancil: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Did they tell you they were gonna do that?
Mr. Stancil: No, sir.
Mr. Justus: Alright, behind tab 3 is a copy of the August 21, 2017 Town of Hope Mills
agenda together with tab 3 which covers the Text Amendment that just took place to fix
the matrix. Is that correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And behind tab 4, is that portions of the Southwest Cumberland Land Use
Plan?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
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Mr. Justus: Alright, behind tab number 5, are, is this portions of the transportation study
that was done by the FMPO?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Behind tab 6, is this an aerial of the property in question that it shows two
parcels with two different addresses?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Then behind tab, I’ll jump over to tab 8A through 8E, is this correspondence
between your representative and the Town dealing with this application?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Going back to September 25, 2017?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Behind tab 9, is this a copy of the Federal Highway Administration
Guidelines for digital signs?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Alright. So you have since that original application updated your application
to show various things that you have copies all handed up. And Mr. Chairman I’m going
to hand this into the Deputy Clerk. I’m going to mark this packet that I just went over as
exhibit 2 and I’ll make sure the Deputy Clerk gets a.
(Court reporter interjects “Three.”)
Mr. Justus: Oh, exhibit 3, I apologize. I’ll make sure the Deputy Clerk gets a copy of
this. Alright, Mr. Chairman, if I may approach, I have copies of the updated site plan.
(Mr. Justus distributes copies to the Board of Adjustment)
Mr. Justus: Alright, Joseph, I’m going to mark this as exhibit 4 and have you explain to
the Board, well first off, did you update your application to denote additional information
for the Boards consideration, is that right?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And in terms of the additional information as a condition of the special use
permit you have agreed to install landscaping along the streetscape of this property, right?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
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Mr. Justus: Not only for the parcel in question that ends with pin number 5123 but also
the pin that’s with 53332, is that right?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Now your application originally was for pin for the parcel ending with the pin
5123, right?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And someone from the Town amended it to include the parcel to the north,
right?
Mr. Stancil: That is correct.
Mr. Justus: So if you could just using this exhibit number 4, walk the Board through your
application and some of the conditions that you’ve agreed to.
Mr. Stancil: Well the application and the site plan, I showed that the proposed billboard
meets all the requirements for the Town of Hope Mills. As shown on the site plan, we
agreed to put landscaping around the pole of the billboard which was not a requirement.
We also agreed to plant trees along the front according to the streetscape standards.
Mr. Justus: And just so we understand the standards we are all looking at, this is, these
are the standards for any commercial use in the Town of Hope Mills in the C(P) district.
These are the landscape requirements when you look in the ordinance in the landscaping
section which is on, let’s see here. Page 110 of the exhibit Zoning Ordinance that we’ve
handed up which is exhibit number one. So at the bottom of page 110 there’s minimum
criteria for a site plan to have landscaping as a development requirement and you’re
agreeing to meet all the landscaping requires that are in this ordinance, correct?
Mr. Stancil: Under the streetscape provisions, yes.
Mr. Justus: Even though you heard Chancer said that for a billboard itself, the billboard
wouldn’t necessarily generate landscaping requirements. Alright, so in terms of the
driveway that’s denoted here off of New, I’m sorry, off of Hope Mills Road NC-59,
you’re willing to also require as or add as a condition that any driveway access for your
billboard you will seek the permission of the department, North Carolina Department of
Transportation, is that right?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Alright, if you would explain to them, the Board, a little bit about the
specifics of the billboard itself.
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Mr. Stancil: Okay. It’s noted on the site plan, Hope Mills Road and George Owen Drive
or at least a major thoroughfare or higher classification per the Fayetteville Area
Metropolitan Planning Organization Comprehensive Transportation Plan as was
referenced by the Planning staff. I believe it’s on the letter that the first page of the
packet you all received from the County Planning staff. It’s also referenced as these
classifications in the Town of Hope Mills Land Us Plan on map 38. There is no
residential zoning within 200 feet of the proposed billboard nor will it orient towards any
residential zoning. The billboard will have an overall height of 35 feet. The billboard
will be 378 square feet in area per side. The edge of the billboard will be 50 feet from the
right-of-way, 6 feet from the property line and over the 50 foot requirement from the
building. The billboard will also be over 500 feet from any existing billboard.
Mr. Justus: Alright, so this particular billboard is proposed with digital technology. If
you would explain to the Board the standards associated with the use of the digital
technology part of the billboard.
Mr. Stancil: The Daktronics digital displays on the billboard will be compliant with
industry lighting, brightness and safety standards as well as North Carolina Department
of Transportation standards.
Mr. Justus: Alright so we have a letter from Daktronics, you’ll get a copy of that. Mr.
Chairman I’m gonna mark as exhibit 5. Daktronics is the supplier of the digital face, is
that correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Alright, Mr. Chairman, if I may approach.
Chairman Mitchell: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: So if you would just utilizing exhibit 5 Daktronics letter and explain to the
Board some of the standards applicable to the digital technology.
Mr. Stancil: On the.
Mr. Justus: Well let me just ask you this, in terms of how bright it is and the particulars, I
guess the letter speaks for itself, is that correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes, that is correct.
Mr. Justus: Now in terms of the display on the sign, the message itself would be in a
fixed, a position for at least 8 seconds, is that correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
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Mr. Justus: The sign will be programmed not to contain or display any flashing,
intermittent or moving lights including animated or scrolling advertisement, correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And there will be a default on the sign that will freeze the sign in one position
if a malfunction occurs, is that correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: And these are all industry standards associated with digital technology and
billboards, correct?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Now in terms of digital technology, billboards and the Town, there is one
approximately a quarter mile from this location, is that right?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: Do you have pictures of that?
Mr. Stancil: I do.
Mr. Justus: Alright. Mr. Chairman I’ll mark this exhibit 6. This photograph is exhibit 6 is
a copy of the photograph of the Lamar Outdoor advertising sign that has digital
technology within the Town of Hope Mills.
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Mr. Justus: If you would just, Mr. Chairman if I may approach I have copies of this.
Chairman Mitchell: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Joseph if you would just describe to the Board where this particular sign,
Lamar sign is located.
Mr. Stancil: This sign is located on Hope Mills Road approximately 1700 feet south of
the proposed billboard site. The address of the site is 2859 Hope Mills Road.
Mr. Justus: Okay and the, in terms of your application, your application is for a sign on
Hope Mills Road as well?
Mr. Stancil: That is correct.
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Mr. Justus: Okay. Those are the questions I have Mr. Stancil. Does anybody have any
questions for him?
Chairman Mitchell: I have one. Would that, your proposed billboard be similar to one
located here in exhibit 6?
Mr. Stancil: Ah, it would be, it would be similar in the technology, yes. It would be a
steel monopole structure with digital, changeable copy on the advertising.
Chairman Mitchell: And do you run PSA’s such as amber and silver alerts like the other
billboard does or is that, how does that work?
Mr. Stancil: Yes.
Board member Bellflowers: Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Mitchell: Yes, sir.
Board member Bellflowers: I have a question. Do you know who added the P5332 to
P5123? You said that the property was added, do you know who did that?
Mr. Stancil: You mean my application I submitted that was modified?
Board member Bellflowers: Site plan.
Mr. Justus: Yes, do you know specifically the individual that modified the site plan to
add a different parcel.
Board member Bellflowers: Yup.
Mr. Stancil: Ah.
Mr. Justus: They’re asking who wrote in the additional parcel number on the site plan
that you submitted.
Mr. Stancil: George Rowes the engineer.
Mr. Justus: They’re asking who added.
Mr. Stancil: On my application?
Mr. Justus: To the application the parcel that, that was, that was added without your
consent.
Mr. Stancil: I do not know but it’s clearly identifiable cause its, somebody inserted some
kind of a Post-It note and its clearly different type, type as well. It’s clearly evident.
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Board member Bellflowers: Okay so you had no knowledge and you don’t know who
added it?
Mr. Stancil: No.
Board member Bellflowers: When did you learn that it was added?
Mr. Stancil: Just recently whenever I received the agenda via email.
Board member Bellflowers: Okay and who did you address it with at that point when you
learned that it was added?
(Mr. Stancil does not respond)
Board member Bellflowers: Did you address that with anyone?
(Mr. Stancil does not respond)
Board member Bellflowers: The knowledge that you learned that it was added. Did you
inquire about why it was added or how it was added?
Mr. Justus: Did you call up anybody and ask them why they added it?
Mr. Stancil: Ah, no.
Mr. Justus: Any other questions?
Board member Bellflowers: Okay.
Chairman Mitchell: Any other questions of the Board at this time?
Board member Legge: Did we ever open the public hearing?
Chairman Mitchell: We’re still in the public hearing phase.
Board member Legge: Did we open it up?
Mr. Hartzog: This isn’t really a public hearing; it’s a Board of Adjustment hearing.
Mr. Justus: Any other questions of Joseph Stancil?
Chairman Mitchell: None other for Joseph Stancil.
Warren Stancil: Warren Stancil with Interstate Outdoor. You had asked about amber
alerts, PSA’s. So our software that we use with Daktronics, if there’s a amber alert, silver
alert within a certain proximity to the location it automatically plays on the display. And
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we do PSA’s and we’re happy to you know participate and do anything we can giving
available space.
Chairman Mitchell: Thank you, Mr. Stancil.
Mr. Justus: And it’s not atypical to have the local governments approving of these signs
to enter into some sort of relationship with the sign company so that public service
messages of that particular locale could be demonstrated on shown on the sign and that’s
usually done gratuitous space available. Those are the questions I have for Mr. Stancil
unless anyone has anymore questions of him. All right, I like to call Mr. Jackson at this
time.
Board member Legge: Alright, we’re coming close to meeting time.
Chairman Mitchell: Yeah. I’d just like to take a moment, for the citizens that are here for
the regular meeting, we are still in our Board of Adjustments meeting and um. Do we
need to recess at some point if we do not meet a reasonable time element or?
Mr. Hartzog: Craig, how long do you think you have left here?
Mr. Justus: I would have less than thirty minutes. What time do you need to get to more
important business?
Board member Legge: Three minutes from now.
Mr. Justus: Three minutes from now?
Mr. Hartzog: (Inaudible) meeting at 7:00 but I think it’s okay to go a little over if you
think you can get this done in a pretty.
(Interjects)
Mr. Justus: Yeah, I have, I have two more witnesses, this gentlemen (inaudible as
Chairman Mitchell interjects).
Chairman Mitchell: Okay, we’ll try for 7:30 if necessary to finish this up.
Mr. Justus: Well it looks like a friendly crowd; I think they’ll cut me some slack here.
Little bit. Alright, Mr. Jackson if you’ll go ahead and tell the Board who you are.
Mr. Jackson: I’m Joshua Jackson, owner of Jackson Automotive.
Mr. Justus: Alright so you are the, a member of the Jackson Estates, LLC which is the
owner of the property in question, right?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
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Mr. Justus: So how long have you been the owner of the business that’s located on this
piece of property?
Mr. Jackson: I think we acquired it in 2011, I think.
Mr. Justus: Okay. Since that time have you ever heard from any representative of the
Town of any violations concerning the use of your property?
Mr. Jackson: No, sir.
Mr. Justus: Alright. So, turn it to tab number 6 in the packet that I handed up which was
exhibit number 3. Is this an aerial of the property?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And behind that aerial, is this a zoning approval letter from the Town of Hope
Mills, September 30, 2011 for your Jackson Auto Sales business on the property
identified with the address 2702 Hope Mills Road, Fayetteville, North Carolina?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Is that the same property that is noted on the previous aerial as 2707?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And then the last document of that tab number 6. Is this a document that
you’ve maintained in your records that you receive from the Town of Hope Mills? Well,
let me ask you this, in terms of the predecessor business; was that a business your father
was involved in?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And in terms of the records associated with your father’s business, did those
records get passed up to you and you’ve maintained those records?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir I’ve held on to ‘em.
Mr. Justus: And in terms of this document which is noted as Jackson Automotive and it
gives the property as 2700 Hope Mills Road and it’s a zoning officer sign off of
September 7, 2006. Is this contained in your records?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Alright and this would be a zoning approval for the Jackson Automotive
September 7, 2006, right?
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Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: From the Town Manager of Hope Mills?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Now behind tab number 7, in terms of, behind tab number 7, the first
document you see, does this appear to be an aerial of the property in question from
approximately 2001?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Okay and at that time there were various structures on the property that don’t
exist today, right?
Mr. Jackson: Correct.
Mr. Justus: And then turning to the next page, does this appear to be an aerial from 2008
of the subject property?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And so the building that’s currently on there today was constructed by at least
2008, is that right?
Mr. Jackson: 2005.
Mr. Justus: Okay by 2005 and so has there been any issues associated with the occupancy
of that building or someone from the Town has said there’s a violation existing on this
piece of property?
Mr. Jackson: No, sir there was never anything, never been addressed to my father or my
grandfather.
Mr. Justus: And then finally, the last aerial behind this tab. This is a picture of what’s
going on in 2017 and basically the present day, is that right?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Now continuing on, there are pictures of the property from Hope Mills Road,
is that correct?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And finally, the latter two documents in that tab is another aerial of present
day showing generally the uses around this piece of property, is that correct?
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Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And Chancer had identified this as a sort of heavy commercial area. Would
you agree with that?
Mr. Jackson: I would agree.
Mr. Justus: There is a storage facility that’s just basically catty-corner to this business,
your business, is that right?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: There’s a shopping center that’s across the street, is that right?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: There’s an ABC store basically just a little bit up the road here on the bottom
photograph, correct?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And in terms of the zoning of the property, your property is zoned
commercial planned district, is that right?
Mr. Jackson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Those are all the questions I have for Mr. Jackson.
Chairman Mitchell: Are there any questions for Mr. Jackson?
Board member Bellflowers: Chairman.
Chairman Mitchell: Yes, sir.
Board member Bellflowers: Mr. Jackson, I heard you say that you were never made
aware or had no knowledge of any zoning concerns or issues with that property, is that
true?
Mr. Jackson: No concerns, no sir.
Board member Bellflowers: Okay nothing, no correspondence from the Town?
Mr. Jackson: No, sir. I mean the only time I have seen the Town people is when they
came by.
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Board member Bellflowers: Okay so when did you learn of any zoning problems with
this property?
Mr. Jackson: I’ve never been alerted of no problems ‘cause as of right now there is none.
Board member Bellflowers: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
Mr. Justus: Mr. Jackson, the aerial, the picture that’s on the overhead there, it’s included
as part of the staff report. Where is shows the driveway you don’t, you don’t own that
property where the driveway’s shown there to the south, do you?
Mr. Jackson: No, sir, I wasn’t able to acquire the property at the same time I bought the
shop.
Mr. Justus: So basically where the line is that’s connected that cuts right into the
driveway. The property to the south of that, the three little parcels shown, you weren’t
able to acquire that, right?
Mr. Jackson: Exactly. Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: That’s all the questions I have.
Chairman Mitchell: Thank you, Mr. Jackson.
Mr. Jackson: Thank you.
Mr. Justus: Ah, Paul. Alright, Paul, if you’ll go ahead and tell the Board who you are.
Mr. Cuomo: Good evening Mr. Chairman and members of the Board, my name is Paul
Cuomo I’m a state certified general real estate appraiser. I’ve been a general real estate
appraiser in general real estate for about fifteen years. My practice that I maintain is in
Greenville, North Carolina, we specialize in the area of eminent domain, real estate
litigation and complex valuation. All types of real property.
Mr. Justus: Well let me ask you that Paul. In terms of the packet I provided to the, Board
which is exhibit number 3 behind tab 10, there is a various documents that relate to your
resume, is that correct?
Mr. Cuomo: That is correct.
Mr. Justus: And in your expertise in appraising, is that correct?
Mr. Cuomo: That is correct. Particularly with litigation, special use permits and all types
of administrative hearings.
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Mr. Justus: Mr. Chairman of course as part of the record we are essentially tendering this
witness as an expert in appraisal, so go ahead, Paul.
Mr. Cuomo: Okay. With, when I look at a property or look at the surrounding properties,
particularly item number 3 is the question that I would be answering on your, that was on
there earlier, I’m sure you have it in your packet. But will the use maintain or enhance
the value of adjoining or abutting properties or that use is a public necessity. We look at,
when we appraise a property we look at what the neighborhood consists of there,
neighborhoods consist of growth, equilibrium, decline and revitalization. No matter
where you live in the world whether you live here or you live in Moscow, Russia, that is
the neighborhood life cycle. So the life cycle of the neighborhood where we’re at now is
in my opinion is growth and some equilibrium. They don’t always go in that order,
basically your land use plan has designated that area as a heavy commercial area. You’ve
already seen and heard about all the adjoining and adjacent properties too across the
street so I’m not gonna regurgitate that information on that part of it.
The next thing we look at is what is the highest and best use of the property surrounded
and obviously that has been a planned commercial corridor, it is the gateway to your city
obviously, there’s no question about that. And so what we look at is there’s sort of a
litmus test if you will, if it is physically possibly, legally permissible, financially feasible
and maximally productive and how are those elements met? So in this case here we’re
talking about a bulletin board and its effect on the adjoining and abutting properties as
proposed. So that comes to what value is; value is a hard thing for a lot of people to
define. Value means it’s something of worth, value means different things for different
people. So I’m gonna tell you the definition that I use comes out of the Appraisal
Institute and how we look at value in real property. We look at the elements of value,
land, labor, capital and coordination and without those it’s like losing a spoke in a wheel.
You might a wheel but it’s gonna wobble a little bit and it’s not gonna turn quite right
and it’s not gonna work great but you need to have all those elements involved. So what
happens is when a properties at its highest and best use in a planned commercial corridor
like you’ve got, those elements particularly, particularly are met since you have a mini
storage beside there and you’ve got a Food Lion, excuse me shopping center, retail
shopping center right there and those, those things work in harmony and that’s what you
want. So for example, the bulletin board itself is an ancillary, what we call an ancillary
fixture on a property. Technically it’s treated as business-personal property, okay. But
you see it, it’s in the ground, it’s pretty permanent. So, what we look at is where do
people put bulletin boards and why do they put them. I know some people call them
billboards I call them bulletin boards so. But what is surrounding that, what is, what is it
do, I mean what effect does it have on things and how do we figure that out. So, the way
I figure that out was to go back and look at all the sales in Hope Mills, different blend of
commercial sales you got. What I did was I pretty much data-mined within about a mile
to a half a mile of the subject and I tried to take your core commercial areas of the city
and I looked at what are the development patterns around there, those are fairly similar,
some are in transition. You’ve got a big project coming on Main Street with the bridge
and different things like that, different transitional areas. So basically what I did was
after that was I went down the road and I looked at a matched pair. Now, you know you
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think a matched pair. Well I’m assuming everybody probably lives in a house or an
apartment or something like that. Well we all know that when we live in a neighborhood
that’s a subdivision, the easiest definition of a matched pair would be you’ve got a three
bedroom, two bath house here, another three bedroom, two bath; one may be brick, one
may be vinyl. Now there’s all different interpretations of what a matched pair is but the
easiest one is most people have a right foot and a left foot and they do pretty much the
same thing except one is right, one is left. So you get as close as you can and that’s what
I tried to do. So I researched around this property on Hope Mills Road, there is an
Advanced Auto and there is a Sonic that is built, that has been built beside it. Then
you’ve got some vacant land, some commercial area, it’s about roughly 1700 feet away,
there’s 5280 linear feet in a mile so do the math; third of a mile or something like that.
So this would be to me, if I was looking to pair this, I want to try to get as close as I can
and what, what conclusions did I come up with. Well, there aren’t very many more to
compare in Hope Mills and there’s a limited amount so I went around and looked at other
things and I looked at land use patterns and I looked at how things moved inside your
commercial corridors and your overlay and then I said well we’re in Cumberland County
so I’m gonna try to find something as unique as I can to the subject even though it might
be outside your municipal limits just to look and see if somebody else had something like
this. I did, I found one at 5517 Raeford Road and I’m more than happy to give you this
aerial. But basically what it is, the billboard was put right there on a mini storage,
opposite of this mini storage, there’s two fast food restaurants. There is an institutional
use, there is an auto service shop directly across from it and another place that, let’s just
say it’s an industrial use for the most part, somewhere in-between not really heavy
industrial use but more like a commercial industrial service type use. So I came to the
conclusion that I went back to the drawing board and I did my little scientific mapping of
all the sales that I could and I looked at all different types of sales. I looked at multifamily, I looked at land, I looked at sales that I call that are in transition like on Main
Street where you’ve got somebody’s converted a house into O & I. Just, just every
different possible type of what I would consider commercial use to see if these billboards
were close to anything and it caused any harm and I didn’t. Okay, so then it comes down
to the question of will they enhance or maintain the value so then I ran some statistics on
your marketplace using those forty-three sales which are the only sales that I could use.
They’re here, I’ve got every single one of ‘em and I looked at ‘em and I found no
particular pattern including those uses right there down the road from the subject. Now,
the conclusions that I came up with were based on, I looked at listings of sales; does
anybody have a, were there any objections on listings, how much are your listings
selling for. We all know that everybody asks for something but we don’t always get what
we ask for, we might get close. Well, you’re doing pretty good cause about 68% of the
time you’re pretty close on commercial real estate which is right in there with an average.
So I went back and I looked and I said “okay, well where are you at on closed real estate”
and it, very marginal difference at all. So I looked at taking those patterns, taking what
goes on, the authority that you have in terms of what surrounds the subjects, how is it
zoned, how is it planned, what is the master plan that zoning and I did not find any
objectionable use to that that I could attribute to putting a bulletin board there. Value
when it is created becomes mutually exclusive whether we like it or not; good, bad, ugly,
indifferent. I’ll give you an example, you may not like the fact your neighbor has a brick
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house and every other house in the neighborhood is vinyl but that doesn’t mean your
house because its vinyl is gonna sell for any less. It also on the same token does not
mean, his or her house or that persons house will sell for anymore because it is brick but
it is a house; it functions, it blends in, it fits into the main stream of things, everybody is a
little bit different and some people do different things but for the most part real estate is
not homogonous, its heterogeneous, its different, it’s always gonna be different.
Commercial real estate has really no rhyme or reason. We try to create districts and we
try to create things to make harmony and I think that there’s no question about that and
that’s a wise thing to do or else we’d probably, you know, be in a lot worse shape than
what we’re in. But in my conclusion based on all the facts that I found and based on the
studies that I did and the data that I have and based on I’ve been up here off and on
probably since I think February working on this DOT project and every other thing. So
I’ve been in and around here and I’ve drove through and I’ve, I have clients up this way
and I’ve looked at the market and really studied it. I just didn’t come up here once or
twice or come back or; I spent a good deal of time really looking at all these things
including the two matched pairs that I have that I used for my analysis. So based on that
I would say a billboard in; as planned and whatever exhibit that is I’m thinking it was
exhibit three or four in the site plan that you got as it was proposed would probably have
no impact on the adjoining properties in terms of it being negative. In terms of it
enhancing its value, possibly over time but in terms of maintaining the value absolutely.
So in maintaining generally leads to enhancing because you generally have commercial
sprawl, you generally have more attributable businesses that build like for example
Advanced Auto, Sonic building beside one another. Both of ‘em are what you call big
box stores, they tend to gravitate toward one another. You have the same thing across the
street from the subject, you’ve got a shopping center, you’ve got an indoor, climatecontrolled mini-storage so that, for those reasons and for everything that I’ve attributed
into my study I would believe that it would definitely maintain or enhance those
surrounding values and I don’t believe it would harm it in any way.
Mr. Justus: Mr. Chairman we have his report that we’re gonna tender to the Town. This
is the exhibit number 7, I’ll mark this and turn this in but if you would, the two matched
pairs, Paul that you were talking about just for clarification. You were looking at the
Lamar sign at 1700 feet away?
Mr. Cuomo: 1740 feet and that is the Lamar sign. That is the one that Mr. Stancil
previously entered, the same, the same photograph. The other one was on Skibo and
Raeford Road and I do have a picture of that in there and it is clearly marked where it is
at and that’s in my report.
Mr. Justus: Mr. Chairman, if I may approach.
Chairman Mitchell: Do we have any questions for Mr. Cuomo? Mr. Bellflowers you
good or you got any questions?
Board member Bellflowers: Yeah, I’m good. No I’m just looking at your picture, that’s
the main thing I wanted to look at.
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Mr. Cuomo: Yes, sir.
Board member Bellflowers: Okay.
Chairman Mitchell: Commissioner Legge?
Board member Legge: Not at the present time.
Chairman Mitchell: Thank you, Mr. Cuomo.
Mr. Cuomo: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Justus: Mr. Chairman, I’ve just got, I just have two. Actually there’s one more
exhibit that ’m gonna mark as exhibit number 8. Chancer, this is a copy of the Hope
Mills.
Mr. McLaughlin: Southwest Land Use Plan.
Mr. Justus: Yes, this is the 2010 Land Use Plan, it denotes where the billboard location is
and the heavy commercial area is that right?
Mr. McLaughlin: That’s correct.
Mr. Justus: So this is exhibit 8, Mr. Chairman if I can hand out the copy of this.
Chairman Mitchell: Can we have a copy for the Clerk?
Mr. Justus: Yes, all these I’m gonna make sure the Clerk gets a copy of all 8. Mr.
Chairman, those are all my witnesses I do have a few things I want to summarize to the
Board. You know the rule of law is awfully important because we all gotta figure out
what we’re supposed to do and where we’re not supposed to step outta line. The Town
Zoning Ordinance provides the standards for the rule of law in this Town and we believe
that we meet the standards. There are two sections of your code, one deals specifically
with billboards and you’ve heard the testimony that in terms of each of those standards
we comply with the standards for billboards in the Town. The other standard is the
special use permit section standard and we would contend that we’ve shown compliance
with that as well in section 102A-1706 there was if you recall on the area, on this
overhead there was a essentially the four general standards that applicable to special use
permits. It’s not on there now but the first standard is the use will not materially
endanger the public health or safety if located according to the plan submitted and
proposed. We would suggest to you that you know, already at 1700 feet away is a
outdoor advertising sign owned by Lamar. There was no question of the Town about it
causing a public health or safety issue, you have standards in place in your code for
billboards that we meet which is an acknowledgement of what standards are necessary to
be sure that things are safe and we meet all of those standards. You have in your, in the
packet I provided to you a copy of the federal guidelines for digital signs and we intend
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to meet all those deadlines in terms of how long a sign has to remain, the message has to
remain in place, we indicated to you it be at least 8 seconds. And how quickly the sign
has to change, these are all federal government guidelines that are in place for digital
signs and we are in compliance with that.
So we believe that we meet the standards C1 of the special use permit. In terms of C2,
it’s the use meets all required conditions and specifications. And you know I was, I spent
some time with Chancer and I just met the man, he’s a good fella, seems to be and I’m
not trying to throw any rocks at anybody here but at the end of the day, the rule of law for
a billboard use specifies what the standards are for a billboard use. There are standards
also in the special use permit standards section that we believe we’ve met. This new
thing that’s come up about group development is not in any of the literature that was
provided to us, this is a new twist on things that is apparently an endeavor to tie us to
something that went on in 2004. Now let me get to the good news, my understanding of
2004, there today someone looking at this has apparently said “well we’re concerned
about landscaping.” Well we’ve said to you, even though it’s not a requirement of a
billboard, we’re gonna put street trees in compliance with your landscaping code for a
new commercial development, we will do those things. So we’re doing more than we
need to to show in good faith that we’re trying to deal with an issue that shouldn’t be put
on our backs but we’re wiling to deal with it. The second thing is there was a issue about
a driveway, well the driveway is not where that 2004 plan shows. The gentleman doesn’t
even own the property where the driveway is shown on that. The driveway has been
there since 2005. You heard the gentleman, Mr. Jackson said the buildings been there
2005. No one’s complained about it but again, trying to step up to the plate even though
Chancer said there’s no driveway connection requirements for a billboard. Why is that?
Because we’re not generating any traffic, however we have said to you as a condition of
this we’ll agree to make sure to check with the DOT and get their permission for
driveway access. So I believe the other things he had mentioned to ya is a concern about
where the buildings currently located, the building, not the billboard. Well folks that was
2005 when the building was put in place and as Mr. Jackson testified from his historical
records the Town has checked off his occupied building now over a decade. He has
received approvals that are in this packet from the Town Manager. So to suggest now
well the billboard, I’m sorry, the building is in some place that is not shown on the site
plan I think is sort of the cows out of the barn there. But at the end of the day the
question is does the building comply with setback requirements, could he put the building
there today? I’ve not heard any testimony that says, “well he couldn’t put the building
where it is today.” And when I was asking about today’s standards about the billboard
again, are there parking lot standards? No. Landscaping standards? No. What are the
standards that somehow this use of property is not complying with but you can somehow
tie to this billboard. Now the only thing I’ve heard is “well the parking lot needs to be
asphalt.” Now you heard that a billboard is not one of those uses that generates parking
and specifically if you look in your parking standards section that’s in your code, there’s
a list of uses that generate the parking requirements. This use, Off Street Parking, Article
13, there’s a list of all the uses that generate parking requirements and parking lot
requirements and the requirements that a parking lot be paved. A billboard is not one of
those uses. So the, the, what you’re hearing from Chancer is some endeavor to hold us to
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paving that parking lot for a use, the billboard use, which doesn’t generate parking,
doesn’t generate that requirement. Now it’s a little bit of a head scratcher how this, these
2004 issues that are arising in 2018 in part because if you look behind tab number of the
notebook I’ve handed to ya, behind tab number 8. There has been a discussion about this
when the application was submitted and you probably noticed that my client said it was
June of last year. Why it’s taken so long to get to you and so there has been discussion
about this, I’m not running from that but we have consistently in the correspondence with
the Town asked how is it possible you’re tying this special use permit application for one
billboard, one sign, to something you now claim has been a problem since 2004. And
you will see the correspondence with the Town and the, I will just point out one thing
from the Town. Behind tab 8D is an email from your Town Attorney, March 16, 2018
that says, behind tab 8D, “you are correct that we are not intending to hold your client
responsible for the violations on the lots and that any actions would likely be barred by
the Statute of Limitations,” behind tab 8D. Now folks that’s from your Town Attorney
indicating that we’re not gonna put on the back of Interstate Outdoor some perceived
thing that apparently originates from 2004 for a piece of property that has been broken up
since then that Mr. Jackson doesn’t even own all of it.
(Inaudible) the good news is there’s a couple of things on that list that we’re willing to do
over and above what the ordinance requires is just, if you said “well you’ve gotta pave
that whole parking lot Interstate.” I would submit to you that contrary to what Chancer
says about you can impose whatever conditions you want, I agree that my client will
agree to reasonable conditions that stem from the impact that this billboard is causing.
Since this billboard doesn’t cause a traffic generating type of use that requires any type of
parking lot standards whatsoever to now tie us to paving a parking lot we think is unfair
and unreasonable. We’re willing to put in these street trees and landscaping, we’re
willing to go to the DOT and make sure they’re happy but we ask you with all due
respect to not impose something like paving a parking lot on this sign (inaudible). Now,
I, the other parts of the packet I’ve handed out just real quickly, I’ve included the
Cumberland Land Use Plan and the reason I did that is behind tab number 3 there was a
Text Amendment that took place by this Board last year and when you did the text
change, that corrected the matrix, if you recall, you sided to that action being consistent
with your land use plan because it promoted commercial development. You sited policy
2 of your land use plan saying it was a good idea. So now after you’ve done that, say you
can come and ask, we’ve cleared up the matrix, ask for a permit before this Board, Board
of Adjustment, we believe we’re following that same land use policy that says we’re here
to promote commercial development and in fact when it talks about billboards in your
land use plan what it says is we wanna make sure that these things are only located on our
major thoroughfares. Well this location is one of your major thoroughfares or a higher
classification actually and so we are meeting what the land use plan says and I turned up,
handed up the map to ya, this is one of the heavy commercial areas. If not this place,
then where? So I ask that you grant this permit we’ve already discussed the conditions
and I’m more than happy to answer questions to lineate again what those conditions are
but I think we’ve met all the standards.
Chairman Mitchell: Are there any questions for Attorney Justus?
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Board member Larson: No, I have one for Mr. Hartzog.
Board member Bellflowers: I have one for him, Chair.
Chairman Mitchell: Okay, Commissioner Bellflowers.
Board member Bellflowers: This has been a long process as well detailed in this book.
Along this process, at any time was the Cumberland County Planning Department
consulted about any of this?
Mr. Justus: Well yes.
(Board member Bellflowers interjects)
Board member Bellflowers: (Inaudible as Mr. Justus is speaking.)
Mr. Justus: Because Cumberland County staff are the ones; the issue about the site plan
didn’t originate with Chancer, it originated from the county staff and as you will see in
the correspondence, we are raising the question about well what is it that the county staff
is complaining about, what can we do to address it; don’t hold up this application. This
application has been held up since the summer of last year. And so yes they’re aware of
it, they’re not here apparently to speak but they are certainly aware of the application.
Board member Bellflowers: What correspondence did you receive from them, from the
department regarding the application?
Mr. Justus: In terms of the correspondence from the county we only got there was calls.
We received correspondence from Chancer and at the end of the day you will see that the
correspondence back to the Town about why our application is being held up and at the
end of the day, again, the application is, was held up since June of last year. In March of
this year we sort of the, dam broke and we were allowed to come forth and present our
application and we were informed that we would not be tethered to apparently what the
county has is an issue with the landowner 14 years later, that’s what the, Mr. Hartzog had
indicated in his email. So that’s, the, so, of course we wanted to make sure you had the
correspondence cause you may have been wondering why is it, if its June, why are, why,
what’s the delay.
Board member Bellflowers: That’s where I’m going with the questions I have is why the
lengthily delay. So my last question is, was it the county or was it the Town that told the
landowner that the entire site plan was under consideration?
Mr. Justus: We were told it was the county. But again, there is correspondence in there
with Chancer and he can speak for himself but it originated from the county. I don’t
know why, I can only say that when it said “your application we’re gonna stop because
we now wanna tie you to 2004.” Again the correspondence, full disclosure of what went
on we have provided to you. You will see in there are, there is an email chain between
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the county and Chancer talking about. But eventually we got and with all, you know I
hate throwing rocks at anybody but we did say “look, you gotta process our application
because that’s a legal requirement to process it. We have met the requirements for an
application for a special use permit, process it.” And it eventually got processed and
eventually you had, I thought we were on the same page because of the Town Attorney’s
email that said we wouldn’t be tied to something from 2004. But again, rather than
talking about half empty, I’m here to talk about the good news about the half full which
is, in trying to, cause I asked repeatedly, “show me the zoning violation, show me any
notice to the land owner. Give me any impression that you have done something instead
of “you don’t like our billboard. Show me” and there was nothing. So I said alright, so
tell me what the problems are. So we heard some of the problems and we said “we’ll
address the landscaping, we’ll address the driveway, we can’t pave the whole parking lot
and I guess for the county standpoint it would not just the PIN that we’re on but it’s the
entire piece because they’ve added they’ve wrote it in. I just don’t believe a billboard
that doesn’t generate traffic should be stuck with paving the parking lot. That’s not
something that your ordinance requires of a billboard use in this Town.
Board member Bellflowers: Thank you, sir. That’s all the questions I have.
Chairman Mitchell: Anymore questions for Attorney Justus?
Board member Legge: I have some concerns. The area out back for storage, is that
fenced in?
Mr. Justus: The area.
(Board member Legge interjects)
Board member Legge: Is that fenced in? Secured?
Mr. Justus: In terms, you’ll have to ask Mr. Jackson that. We do not control. We don’t
lease that part of the property so we don’t have any control over that piece.
Board member Legge: There’s junk cars sitting there, somebody’s responsible for it.
Mr. Justus: With all due respect I’d say the billboard owner is not responsible for a junk
car. But Mr. Jackson is here if you want to ask Mr. Jackson any question.
Board member Legge: I’m addressing you.
Mr. Justus: So I’m not aware of a junk car. I have been out there, I know that the Town
has permitted this in 2006 and 2011, both pieces for automotive sales and so I’m not
aware of any zoning violations. I didn’t study every car to see if in fact it was available
for sale as part of our application rule.
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Board member Legge: What I’m getting at is I myself had at least two complaints last
week about all the junk in that area. Not just at Mr. Jackson’s shop but the shop across
the road from that for all these. This gateway to Town is a trash pit and I’m not, no
reflection on you Mr. Jackson, I apologize if it seems that way. I just read some
paperwork here, somewhere it said you have a towing area that is fenced. Is that fenced
is my question. If this sign was allowed to go up, its not paved then I would suggest it’s
not parking area, as you said then we don’t allowed cars to be parked there if it goes that
far.
My next question would be, is there any connection between the Attorney’s defense;
Wills, Hopkins, Cranfill, Sumner, and Hartzog of Raleigh. Are you affiliated with this
group of lawyers?
Mr. Justus: I’m not.
Board member Legge: Okay.
Mr. Justus: That is Hartzog. So of what you rattled off, I’m Van Wickle, Buck, Wall,
Starnes and Davis. Dan here is with the respectable firm of all those things you just
rattled off.
Board member Legge: I got ‘em off of your paperwork.
Mr. Justus: Sure.
Board member Legge: That’s all I have, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Mitchell: Thank you. Any other questions?
Mr. Justus: And I would just respectfully submit that whether or not there’s a junk yard
on the property it doesn’t, it’s an issue that doesn’t just necessarily go away if you
approve our permit today. It doesn’t, it may not magically say “okay the junk yard can
be there, the junk car can be there or a fence.” What we’re saying is this is an application
for a billboard and we meet all the standards. I do think it’s fairly odd as Mr. Jackson
said that so far until the billboard application came into play, never been a problem.
Again, it’s the rule of law that I’m asking you to enforce today. Thank you.
Chairman Mitchell: Thank you, sir. Are there any questions of our Town Attorney or
Town staff?
Board member Larson: So the two site plans are completely different, obviously the one
from ’04 versus the one that you’ve given us today. Isn’t the typical order that you would
have a site plan approved before doing a sign or a billboard on that property and this site
plan was not the one that was approved in ’04?
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Mr. McLaughlin: One thing I would like to clarify in terms of the lengthiness of the
correspondences’. Town staff and county staff has repeatedly conveyed to Mr. Stancil
from day one that the site plan that you see before you today does not match what was
approved in 2004. That was the hold up. At one point we were refusing to accept that
site plan because if you look in your packet, the Attorney asked us what was tying them
to group developments. On page 14 of the Town of Hope Mills Ordinance, group
developments are defined as commercial properties that’s have more than one principle
use. The two principle uses on this development is the billboard and the existing
structure. I add furthermore that if you add condition 9 on your proposed condition sheet
that Mr. Stancil received on April 30th. This is another procedural thing. When an
application because the reason why we took the application in is because the applicant
refused to make the update to the site plan to reflect what was approved in 2004. So we
talked to the Town Attorney and what we ultimately said was take it in and let the Board
decide. This was not us saying that the application was complete. Everything you see
listed here has the outstanding conditions from 2004 was everything we said verbatim as
to why we were not allowing the application to initially be submitted. The reason why
it’s before you now is we just basically said “let the guy be heard. Let the Board make
those decisions.”
But if you look at condition 9 when it speaks to, I mean condition 7, it says “because this
request constitutes a group development which is two principle structures on the same
property in terms of motor vehicle repair and billboard, it triggers a Sidewalk Ordinance.
So I do differ with respect to someone saying a billboard doesn’t generate parking. We
do not allow people to pick and choose the ordinance regulations that they see fit. We’ve
had sidewalks kicked in for a landscaping business, those don’t generate a significant
amount of parking either but because this is considered a group development by
definition in our ordinance, it triggers the fact that all the entire site is under
consideration. It also triggers sidewalk owner regulations so why the Attorney is saying
that he shouldn’t be required to pave the lot more than likely when he gets his draft
condition sheet that is client received on April 30th it indicated the sidewalks were
required as well. So I also want to object to the notion that they were not notified
because on that correspondence on the 30th of April it gave Mr. Stancil until May the 7th
to ultimately coordinate with the Jackson’s on whether or not these conditions would be
agreed upon. There’s a General Statute that states that the conditions have to be mutually
agreed upon by the Board and the property owner. So Mr. Stancil is saying one thing but
I do feel that I need t point out that these conditions, whatever the Board sees fit; if they
want to enforce all of them, some of them or none of them. If there are conditions that
are imposed they have to be agreed upon by the owners of the property.
Mr. Hartzog: And if I may jump in, sorry Craig. I want to clarify the letter that was cited
to that or the email that I wrote cause I think the context of that email is important. The
context of it was this request for the application to be processed and my response was
“we’re not going to use that in an attempt to hold up the process. We’re gonna allow the
application to be processed to come before the Board.” I did not and could not in any
way provide any assurance that we wouldn’t permit; that the Board of Adjustment would
not perm-, ya know have conditions upon the grant of the special use permit. That’s not
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something that legally I would be able to weigh in on, that’s the Board’s discretion.
Remind you we are under section 102A-1707, if you read that section in full, “the Board
shall consider the application.” Those four that are up there are the ones that you must
find. You may also consider the ones in subsection e which are the list of one through
thirteen and the Board is permitted to put whatever conditions it believes are appropriate
to meet those ends. So my email was not intended to say “there are no conditions that
will ever be imposed.” I could not legally say that. What I was saying in that email is
we’re not intending to enforce that in terms of processing the application and the Statute
of Limitations issue is if we had gone after the land owner and tried to cite him for a
violation that would probably be barred by the Statute of Limitations. We weren’t trying
to enforce the conditions but that, that should not be read as any indication that the Board
is restricted in what conditions it can put on the property.
Board member Larson: Chairman Mitchell?
Chairman Mitchell: Yes, Commissioner Larson?
Board member Larson: Would it be inappropriate to ask our Planning representative for
the County to speak if she has anything to add?
Chairman Mitchell: That is fine with me.
Betty Lynd: Do I have to be sworn in first?
Board member Bellflowers: Yeah.
Mr. Justus: Mr. Chairman, can I respond. There’s been two apparently folks have
responded (inaudible) can I respond before we lose track of.
Chairman Mitchell: Can we hear from the county representative first.
Ms. Lynd: Hi, I’m Betty Lynd; I am the Zoning Planner for Cumberland County Planning
and you all’s representative. I guess there are a few things you wanted me to clarify
about the conditions and possibly the change in the application. Mr. Stancil is right that
was a Post-It note. When graphics processes these cases, i.e. creates the site plans and
stuff, you’ll notice on the site plan that was submitted there are two PIN numbers shown
on the site plan drawn up by George Rowes. When graphics is looking at it, if they saw
that second PIN number they would put the Post-It note on that application to let myself
or Hope know that they do it for acreage to; if we see a different acreage or we see
additional PIN number inadvertently that Post-It note was copied inside the packet. So it
was not written on the application itself, it was a note from the various people that
process these cases that “hey you might wanna be aware of this information as well.” So
it was not County staff that changed that. Furthermore, the conditions or I guess I should
talk about the correspondence from the County. Mr. Stancil did submit the case to me.
As County staff we were aware that the site may or may not have been developed
according to that site plan so I did email Chancer and say typically you know we deferred
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you all and whether or not you want us to process this case if it’s not developed
according to the approved site plan. He conferred with the Town Attorney and they let us
know to keep processing, that’s how it ended up before you guys. The timeframe it took,
I can’t speak to.
And then if conditions 1a through 1, 2, 3, and 4 are not necessarily because of any
violations, they are because the site plan that was given for this case is contradictory
towards the last one that was approved 2004. And so to make sure that the billboard, i.e.
condition 4 says that a building that was shown on the 2004 plan is not shown on the site
plan submitted by Mr. Stancil. If we cannot ascertain whether or not that billboard is or
is not too close to that building; that’s why we’re asking for a revised site plan. The
conditions we revised on the site plan are because of the billboard location not because of
any perceived violations that were on the site. Um and I can answer anything else from
the County’s perspective if you’d like me to.
Board member Bellflowers: Mr. Chair?
Chairman Mitchell: Yes.
Board member Bellflowers: Betty, you requested a site plan revision?
Ms. Lynd: We did because we were made aware that the site was not developed
according to that site plan. As Mr. Jackson has said, his driveway is not where that plan
indicates it is so we asked for a revised site plan. At that time Mr. Stancil did not want to
show the whole site and that, so we obviously processed the site plan he submitted.
Board member Bellflowers: We they refused to submit a revised site plan based on your
guidance and recommendation?
Ms. Lynd: The site plan you have before you is the site plan he submitted.
Board member Bellflowers: And that’s not the revised one you asked for?
Ms. Lynd: It did not indicate everything on the site.
Board member Bellflowers: Does it indicate anything of those conditions or some of
those conditions?
Ms. Lynd: Well we’re asking for the revised site plan in order to ascertain the things
listed and the conditions under 1a.
Board member Bellflowers: Was a revised site plan, is it a requirement for the
application?
Ms. Lynd: Like Chancer said, if there are two principle uses on a site i.e. the billboard
and motor vehicle repair it is a group development; we would look at the site as a whole.
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Board member Bellflowers: But is it required for the application?
Ms. Lynd: (Inaudible as Board member Bellflowers being speaking again).
Board member Bellflowers: The revised site plan and did you inform them.
Ms. Lynd: A complete site plan yes, sir is required for the application.
Board member Bellflowers: Okay and you informed them of that.
Ms. Lynd: Yes, sir that’s on the first page of the application.
Board member Bellflowers: Mhm and still they refused to submit a revised site plan.
Ms. Lynd: The site plan that they’ve submitted is what they indicated they’d like to
submit.
Board member Bellflowers: Okay, Chair.
Board member Legge: Mr. Mitchell, I have a question.
Board member Bellflowers: I may have another one in a minute.
Board member Legge: Does that mean that because the site plan wasn’t built according to
the agreement, is that building illegal to be sitting there?
Ms. Lynd: We’re not Code Enforcement.
Board member Legge: I’m sorry?
Ms. Lynd: The County isn’t Code Enforcement. If they didn’t develop the site according
to the site plan that was approved that would’ve been up to the Town to submit a
violation.
Board member Legge: So you can’t answer that?
Chairman Mitchell: So the site plan we have before us and exhibit 4 is the revised site
plan that is being presented for approval tonight along with their request?
Ms. Lynd: I apologize; I wasn’t able to see as he was giving (inaudible).
Chairman Mitchell: Okay.
Ms. Lynd: Yes, sir. Exhibit 4 would be the site plan submitted by Mr. Stancil.
Chairman Mitchell: Okay. I think that’s all we had for you, Betty. Thank you so much.
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Ms. Lynd: No problem.
Mr. Justus: Can I ask a question?
Chairman Mitchell: Real quick, Attorney Justus cause we need to move on.
Mr. Justus: Betty is your name?
Ms. Lynd: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Okay. Two things, one, the issue about the completeness of the application.
That didn’t come up until April of 2018 when the application was submitted in June of
2017, right?
Ms. Lynd: There have been several attempts for a revised site plan but without having my
email in front of me I could not specify certain dates.
Mr. Justus: Well we have all the correspondence as part of the packet and so the issue
about the application not being complete came up in April of 2018 in the very end,
couple of weeks ago. Before that it was “we’re gonna tie ya to the 2004 site plan and
then they went off the radar. So then we said, well what can we do and there was no
clarification or there was any hope for anything. It was only in April that they said “oh
well now the application’s not complete.” So I do now want to, Mr. Chairman ask about
the application and the site plan. Exhibit 4, can everybody look at exhibit 4? You talk
about a driveway, show. So you say “well we didn’t show the driveway from the 2004
plan.” Betty do you know that the driveway on the 2004 plan is offsite from these two
parcels?
Ms. Lynd: From these two parcels, yes.
Mr. Justus: Alright. So she’s asking “could you please draw in a driveway that doesn’t
exist.” Is that what you’re saying that because we do show the driveways on this plan
right?
Ms. Lynd: I wouldn’t say they were asking for you to draw a driveway on a property that
doesn’t exist. We’re asking for a revised site plan on how the property is developed
today.
Mr. Justus: And so let’s just go through this. The two driveways are denoted on this plan,
exhibit 4 correct? Yes?
Ms. Lynd: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: And we have said that if the DOT, we will seek DOT permission to use, to
use the driveway. You heard that as a condition right? Now in terms of the building,
have you been to the property?
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Ms. Lynd: I have not. No, Sir
Mr. Justus: In terms of buildings, we have located the only building on the property
today. There is an aerial that you have in your packet that shows where the building is.
You see the existing building there?
Ms. Lynd: I do.
Mr. Justus: So are you telling me we should put in a phantom building that no longer
exists from 2004 that’s been torn down?
Ms. Lynd: No, sir. Condition 4 says that if the billboard is approved and the proposed
location submitted, it is most likely would be too close to the conditionally approved
storage building that was shown on the 2004 plan. It is not possible to ascertain a
separation between the storage building on the 2004 plan and the proposed billboard
location without the storage building being included on the billboard site plan. Upon
consideration, the revised plan of the storage building should not be approved in the
original approved location since accessory structures cannot be permitted in the front
yard. We’re saying if they are, show it. If it’s not, what do we need to know.
Mr. Justus: And it’s not there, Betty. So we wouldn’t show it. Quite frankly I think if the
land owner then wanted to put in a storage building after the fact then there might be
some issue about separation of the billboard. So in terms of the only building on the
property, it shows on the site plan we have submitted. Do you have any evidence to
suggest that what we show here is not accurate in terms of where the building is located?
Ms. Lynd: No. I do not.
Mr. Justus: And that it’s located far enough away from the billboard in accordance with
your billboard standards right?
Ms. Lynd: Yes, sir.
Mr. Justus: Alright so in terms of the information you lack on this site plan, exhibit 4,
what would be the material information that you lack? In terms of driveway, in terms of
you know where the building is, in terms of landscaping. What is it that would be
material to the use of the property according to the standards in your ordinance for
billboards?
Ms. Lynd: Right. These, again, these conditions were generated because the 2004 site
plan indicates one thing and the site plan that was submitted for the billboard is
contradictory to that. So we were asking for a revised site plan for Case 04005.
Chairman Mitchell: Thank you.
Ms. Lynd: Mmhmm.
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Board member Legge: May I ask Betty something? Sorry.
Ms. Lynd: You’re fine.
Board member Legge: So does that lot the business is on require two entrances and two
exits?
Ms. Lynd: Does a business require two entrances and two exits?
Board member Legge: Well does that business require entrance and exit off of Hope
Mills Road and George Owen Road and if so how many?
Ms. Lynd: I would say whether they need them or not is not a matter for me to decide it
would depend on whether DOT would give them driveway permits for those entrances or
not.
Board member Legge: Okay so there’s not a second driveway permit on that land?
Ms. Lynd: I don’t know (inaudible as Board member Legge interjects).
Board member Legge: The land he’s speaking about the driveway is on, on the storage lot
side of his.
Ms. Lynd: Right, they wouldn’t submit a driveway, their approved driveway to us, they
would give it to the Town at the time of permit so I don’t have a copy of any approved
driveway permit that they have.
Board member Legge: Thank you.
Chairman Mitchell: Anymore questions? Okay. Do we have any action that we want to
take?
Mr. Hartzog: Before you all vote let me just remind you that we’re under section 102A1707 special conditional use permits. Just remind the Board that this is a quasi-judicial
hearing and can only take into account evidence that was presented at the hearing today.
What you’re deciding is again if you look under subsection d you must find one through
four on there in order to grant special use permit. You’re also entitled to consider under
subsection e any of the other factors listed out there and the Board can grant, deny or
approve with the conditions.
Chairman Mitchell: What’s the wishes of the Board?
Board member Edwards: We go through each one don’t we?
Chairman Mitchell: Do we need a motion on each one of these four factors?
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Mr. Hartzog: I don’t know that you need to adopt each one of those by motion but the
Board needs to find in order to grant the permit that all four of those requirements are
met.
Chairman Mitchell: What’s the pleasure of the Board?
Board member Bellflowers: Mr. Chair, may I ask one more? I’m gonna ask again. What
are you client’s reasonable additions to this? It was the landscaping and what else?
Mr. Justus: Yes, sir. So if you look on exhibit 4 there are street trees so we are saying to
you the landscaping requirements of your ordinance for commercial development, even
though it’s not required, we will abide by that and we’ve shown 21 street trees on this
plan. Ornamental trees that our folks will be responsible for as part of this application.
The driveway’s denoted here, we will go to the Department of Transportation and seek
permission from them to utilize driveway access to this piece of property. In terms of the
standards, we’ve already discussed the standards of the ordinance in terms of how big it
is, how tall it is. You know we’ve indicated to you our willingness due to space
availability to make public service messages available on this sign. Again it would just
require a future agreement between the Town and the billboard owner and that’s usually
based on space availability. So I believe those are the conditions and oh, so sidewalks
Board member Bellflowers: Yeah.
Mr. Justus: Our ya know we don’t generate traffic. We don’t generate pedestrian traffic
but the County did throw that on there. Again, we don’t understand how the Zoning
Ordinance which doesn’t speak to sidewalks for a billboard, how it was required of us but
we’re willing to put in a sidewalk if necessary to get this permit even though (inaudible
as Board member Bellflowers interjects.)
Board member Bellflowers: Okay so we’ve got, we’ve got the landscaping, we’ve got the
DOT contact, we’ve got sidewalks.
Mr. Justus: Yes, sir.
Board member Bellflowers: That’s three. Did I leave out one?
Mr. Justus: Yes, sir. Ah, no. The only thing that I don’t know based on the comments of
2004 is asphalting the entire ya know, entire parking lot but that’s what we’re asking not
to impose. But those are the conditions you’ve expressed, yes of course what we’ve, all
the exhibits say exactly what we’re gonna do, that’s what we’re gonna do. That would be
a condition of compliance with the, with the standards that are in our application.
Board member Bellflowers: Chair, I’m gonna make a motion we approve Case 17-03HM consideration of a special use permit to allow a billboard in the C(P) planned
commercial district on .96 acres located at 2702 Hope Mills Road submitted by Joshua
and Erica L. Jackson on behalf of Jackson Estates, LLC. (owner) and Joseph Stancil on
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behalf of the Interstate Outdoor Incorporated (agent) along with the three recommended
conditions from the applicant, that they, that this permit meets step one through four.
That’s my motion, Chair.
Board member Edwards: I’ll second it.
Chairman Mitchell: Is there any discussion?
Board member Legge: No, sir.
Chairman Mitchell: All in favor raise your right hand. All against. Motion passes three
to two.
Motion made by Board member Bellflowers to approve case P17-03-HM consideration of
a special use permit to allow a billboard in the C(P) planned commercial district on .96
acres located at 2702 Hope Mills Road submitted by Joshua and Erica L. Jackson on
behalf of Jackson Estates, LLC. (owner) and Joseph Stancil on behalf of Interstate
Outdoor Inc. (agent) and that this permit meets steps one through four of the Special Use
Criterion along with the 3 recommended conditions to address landscaping, paving the
parking lot and sidewalks and the motion carried with a vote of 3 ayes and 2 noe’s by
Board member Legge and Board member Larson.
Chairman Mitchell: And do we have a motion to dismiss, adjourn?
Board member Bellflowers: Motion.
3.

ADJOURNMENT.

Motion made by Board member Bellflowers, seconded by Board member Legge and
carried unanimously, to adjourn the meeting.
Chairman Mitchell adjourned the meeting at 7:57 p.m.
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TOWN OF HOPE MILLS
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2018 6:00 P.M.
BILL LUTHER & DORIS LUTHER BOARD MEETING ROOM
Chairperson Mike Mitchell called the special meeting of the Hope Mills Board of
Adjustment to order on Monday, October 22, 2018 at 6:00 p.m.
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
Chairman Mike Mitchell, Board members Jessie Bellflowers, Pat Edwards, Meg Larson
and Jerry Legge.
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Town Manager Melissa Adams, Town Clerk Jane Starling, Development & Planning
Administrator Chancer McLaughlin. Also present was Town Attorney Dan Hartzog, Jr.
1.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

Motion made by Commissioner Legge and carried unanimously, to approve the agenda as
presented.
2.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: December 18, 2017 Training Meeting, and
December, 18, 2017 Special Meeting.

Motion made by Commissioner Legge and carried unanimously, to approve the minutes of
the December 18,2017 Special Meeting.
Mayor Pro Tem Mitchell recused himself from the first public hearing as Jennifer Hixson
is a client and requested Board Member Legge preside.
3.

PUBLIC HEARING.

a.

P18-01-HM: CONSIDERATION OF A VARIANCE TO ALLOW A 3.5 FOOT
SIDE YARD SETBACK WHERE 5 FEET IS REQUIRED IN A PND PLANNED
NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT ON 0.31+/- ACRE, LOCATED AT 5789
ROCKFISH ROAD; SUBMITTED HARVEY E STEWART, SR (OWNER) AND
JENNIFER STEWART HIXSON (AGENT). (HOPE MILLS)

Board member Legge opened the public hearing for case P18-01-HM at 6:10 p.m.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: We’ll open this hearing up.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Quid pro order; I do have a sign in sheet for each case. So, I would
like to let everyone know that does need to sign in.
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BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: If anyone hasn’t signed in to speak that wants to speak.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: They need to be sworn in.
Town Clerk Starling sworn in Jennifer Hixson, 5789 Rockfish Road, Hope Mills, NC and
Patricia Scifres, 3501 Golfview Road Hope Mills, NC.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: This first hearing is to allow a three-foot five side yard
setback in a PND planned neighborhood 0.31+/- acres, located at 5789 Rockfish Road;
submitted by Harvey E. Steward, Sr. (Owner) and Jennifer Stewart Hixson (agent).
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Okay.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: I’ll turn it over to Mr. McLaughlin.
Mr. McLaughlin using projector made a presentation with maps & photographs.
MR MCLAUGHLIN: As stated before, this is case P18-01-HM. What you can see here
highlighted in red with the arrow is the subject property and it’s surrounding zoning. It’s
in a very heavily established, residential neighborhood but it’s actually right across the
street. You see that large O & IP piece of property, that is the Hope Mills Fire Station and
Police Station. This is your existing land use, as such, the number one is again, the Hope
Mills Fire Station, Police Station and Town Hall. This is an aerial view, subject property
is outlined in white. Existing soils, subject property is outlined in red. Existing sewer. This
is the site plan, I’ll come back to this at any point that you guys need to reference it for the
discussion. And here are the site phonographs.
I’m gonna leave this variance; these criteria up because these are the four pieces that all
have to be found if you are moving to grant and it does require a simple majority vote.
Again, I’ll keep this up throughout the duration of this discussion and anytime you need
me to refer back to the site plan, let me know.
In terms of the background, the subject property is located at 5789 Rockfish Road and
zoned under PND district regulations which also mirror the R7.5 single family residential
district. The site is developed with an existing single-family residence and there is a new
196.02 square foot storage shed that was installed three point five from the westside
property line. I’ll go back to the site plan. Again, the storage shed that you see in bold on
the right side of the site was installed three point five feet from the west side of the property
line. Our Town of Hope Mills Zoning Ordinance does; this is an accessory structure and
although you have regular side yard setbacks that vary between ten and fifteen feet, if
you’re building an accessory structure you’re allowed to go as close as five feet to the side
and rear property lines. In terms of the existing non-conformities, this existing storage
shed that is subject to this request was brought to our attention by Code Enforcement. In
the process of having it filed and things of that nature, staff was made aware of another
storage shed that is
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located here (identifying on map) that is already existing. That storage shed if you also
notice there is a twenty-foot drainage easement in the rear of the property. That is an issue
as well because while you can get a variance to get a storage shed closer to the property
line, there is no variance to allow for any type of structure over an easement. But, after
having conversations with the applicant, she did inform staff that was in the location when
she purchased the facility. That creates something of a conundrum because even though
that creates a grandfathered use, there’s still not a scenario that we could allow for the
storage shed to be located over an easement. So, depending on the Board would like to see
fit with this case, this may be something that would require that to be relocated even if you
actually do approve the current request for the new storage shed in the location three point
five feet from the property line. I just want to point that out, that wasn’t what triggered the
case but something we were made aware of during the duration of this particular case being
filed.
In terms of the setbacks, typically they’re thirty feet in the front, ten feet on the sides and
thirty- five feet in the rear. As with quasi-judicial proceedings, there is no staff
recommendation from my end on this case. I’d like to open the floor up to any questions
that you may have or any testimony from anybody that signed up to speak.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: If they relocated the second shed, where would they
relocate it to?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Anywhere just outside of that drainage easement.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Has enough room.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yes, just anywhere that is a free location on the site. Now I think
the Building Code kicks in where any structure on the site has to have five-foot separation
but if there is a clear area on the site that they can just shift it forward then that would
remedy this. The reason this case is under consideration is a little bit more difficult because
from my understanding and to the applicants defense, she did indicate to us that she was
not aware that these things require permits but the storage shed in bold is anchored on a
slab so I do think it will be a little bit more difficult to just shift that which is why I think
she’s requesting the variance of three point five feet.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Chancer, how old is this shed or how long has it
been there?
MR. MCLAUGLIN: The one on the easement?
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Yeah, on the easement.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: The one at the back of the property.
(Ms. Hixson speaking in background)
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BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay, 2001. Who knows. How old is the house
then or how long has the house been there?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Wait. Typically, if they’re gonna speak I’d like for them to come
up and talk into the mic (inaudible).
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Yeah.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: At this point I think more than likely Legge would ask to speak for
somebody that is in support of the case or somebody that signed up to speak in opposition
then you can get that testimony that way.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Anyone else have any questions? If not, I have a question.
MS. HIXSON: Yes, sir.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: On the easement; and I’ve been a retired builder, I used to
have a problem with easements and we were allowed to build. What did I do wrong?
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: (Inaudible) Qualified to discuss.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Good? I ran into some problems with easements where we
could build zero lot lines to a easement and the county made me move a builder five foot
one time and found out he was wrong so I had to move it to where I moved the foundation
to. Is this rear building affected by that zero-lot line easement?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Zero lot lines are typically done at the approval of the subdivision
when a neighborhood is created but there is no zero-lot line proceeded that would allow
for a structure to be located over an easement. That’s what makes this a little bit different,
there is no procedure that would allow for a structure to be located on an easement.
Usually even when someone is asking for a fence to be built over an easement you can
approve that but I caution them because if someone needs to access it, they have free reign
to tear the fence down but there is no process that allows for a structure. So even if this was
considered a zero-lot line approval, that zero lot line would still force that structure to stop
at where that easement line would start.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Right, that was my point. It would stop it where that
easement starts. Is that building on a concrete slab as well? Both of em?
MS. HIXSON: Yes, sir.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Both of em?
MS. HIXSON: Yes, sir. Yes.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Yes? Okay.
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BOARD MEMBER LARSON: Can I ask Chancer a question?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yes.
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: You said the building; they purchased the house in 2001?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: That’s what I was told. I just required (Inaudible as Board Member Larson interjects)
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: Unless it was already there.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: That’s what the applicant was telling me.
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: No. What year was the shed put on.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: The shed (Board Member Larson interjects)
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: The one in the back.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Along the easement was never permitted. We looked through our
records and there is no current building permit which is why I reached out to the applicant
who indicated it was there when they purchased the property. So typically, if (Ms. Hixson speaking in background)
MS. HIXSON: When I first went to visit my dad in that house that shed was there. It was
on that foundation.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: So typically, in a grandfathered issue that is considered legally
nonconformant this is a conundrum because the legal, well the nonconformity is the
easement, not the proximity to the rear property line. Again, I don’t know of a procedure
that allows for something that can’t be done to be grandfathered. Which is why you know
in the county we all discussed this as well so its basically something in the consideration
of the storage shed with the three-point five-foot variance you’re almost being forced to at
least address the location of the existing storage shed that was, that had been there for close
to twenty years.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Chancer.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yes?
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Chairman I have a question.
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BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Yes, sir.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: What are the options for this Board to consider
regarding that shed? Leave it in place? Move it? What’s the options?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Moving it would be the only option because leaving it in place
would require it to be torn down. There is no (Board Member Bellflowers interjects)
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: And does the applicant know that? That leaving –
(Mr. McLaughlin interjects)
MR. MCLAUGLIN: I don’t think the applicant was aware that the storage shed in the rear
was even an issue until the county; we got the site plan. When the county got the site plan
and they started vetting the site with me and we started getting, making comments, that’s
when the shed in the rear became a subject of discussion and then we started doing more
research and –
(Board Member Bellflowers interjects)
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay, so the applicant. You bought the house in
’71.
(Ms. Hixon speaking in background)
MS. HIXSON: No, no.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Or 2001.
MS. HIXSON: My dad bought the house in 2001 (inaudible).
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Come up to the mic.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Oh, yeah, yeah that would be better. Now let me
ask this –
(Board Member Legge interjects)
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Do we need to wait ‘til we open the public hearing to hear
this? Okay.
MS. HIXSON: The house was built in ’72.
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BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWES: ’72.
MS. HIXSON: My dad, in 2000, 2001; someone approached him in 2000 about taking over
payments an buying the house.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MS, HIXSON: He was engaged to my stepmom, she said yes, so they bought the house.
My first visit was in 2001 on their wedding day and that shed was there then. I’m going
by my knowledge, okay.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Shed, it’s on a concrete slab. It to your knowledge,
it was never permitted and you thought it was legal.
(Ms. Hixson interjects)
MS. HIXSON: I, I have no idea because it’s my dad’s property. It’s partly mine now
because I now live there and when my dad passes, the house is going to be mine. I hope
that’s not for another twenty years but –
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: oh, me too.
MS HIXSON: ‘Ya know and back in, back in May my husband passed away and my dad
wanted to make sure I had somewhere to do my stuff. Him and my husband had talked
about getting a shed and bringing stuff down because when he retired, we were ‘gonna just
settle here in Hope Mills. Well, he didn’t get to retire so whenever my dad said “I want to
go ahead and get you that building.” I went up to Lowe’s, I asked him about the variance,
I asked him if I needed any permits, I asked him all the right questions and they told me;
the person that was. They told me I didn’t need any permits because it was a shed. I said
“but I’m gonna have to have electricity put into it in order to sew in it” and they said “we’re
not aware of any permits you need.”
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Mhmm (Acknowledges).
MS. HIXSON: My dad was standing right there so I assumed Lowe’s knew what they were
talking about because they install this stuff all the time. When the people; my dad wanted
to put it on concrete so when the people called to tell me how many feet away from the
property line, they said it had to be three feet and my dad paid someone to come out there
and measure it. They said “we’re gonna give you a little bit extra, ‘ya know. But made it
the exact twelve by sixteen concrete bed and still whenever I said, whenever I asked them
“is there any permits I need,” none.
So, I didn’t know there was a permit needed until the electrician contacted Hope Mills to
come and inspect it. Ray came over and asked me about my permits and I said I was told
I didn’t need any and everything has been put on hold for three months since then cause I
had to get it; the property, you know the variance and the property lines and everything. I
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was told there was two ways I could go; I could pay for my neighbors and mine to get done
to see if they would go for a zero-lot line or I could just file for the variance. I filed for the
variance because we try to do; I try to go by the law. I did not purposely break your
ordinance or anything else and my dad wouldn’t purposely break your ordinance because
he’s not; he might be a hardhead but he does go by the law, okay.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MS. HIXSON: Everybody that’s here that knows my dad knows that he can be a hardhead
but he does try to go by the law.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Now the shed in the back, does that one have
electricity too?
MS. HIXSON: No.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: No, it doesn’t have any electricity.
MS. HIXSON: No.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Is it, is it full of material?
MS. HIXSON: It’s got my dad’s lawnmowers and stuff like that in there. I think he’s
transferred some of the property that I brought down from Maryland that was flooding his
garage. I think him and my son moved some stuff into that. But for the most part that’s
his yard tools; his riding lawnmowers, his lawnmowers, weed-eaters, stuff like that.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: And what type of shed is it?
MS. HIXSON: Just a basic.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Is it an aluminum or wooden or?
MS. HIXSON: Yeah, it’s an aluminum shed.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Just a regular aluminum shed.
MS. HIXSON: I think in about two or three years its gonna fall down on its own
deterioration.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Well that was my next question. Was it toward the
end of its life?
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Excuse me a minute, I know I’m recused but I wanted to point
out an item. Is it appropriate for us to discuss the second shed since it’s not on the agenda?
Or their variance request?
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TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: (Inaudible).
MS. HIXSON: But its, it; like I said, you know, he’s got a padlock on it half the time
whenever you go in there and you have to shake the doors. You know when things are
starting to fall apart, they’re not in the best of shape anyways.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay, I thank you.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Mr. Chairman?
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Yes, ma’am.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: This shed in back, I mean they keep going back to it and
all. Is it harming anybody? Has it, has it been –
(Ms. Hixson interjects)
MS. HIXSON: Not that I know of.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Okay then, that part I’ll forget about but the only thing
that you want to come now is to get the variance approved and when you went to Lowe’s
and every place you went to they said you didn’t need one but you didn’t find out the
Town’s regulations until you came to get it inspected by Ray.
(Ms. Hixson interjects)
MS. HIXSON: Yup. Ray came over and asked –
(Board Member Edwards interjects)
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: And that’s when you found out about it.
MS. HIXSON: (Continues on) And asked about the permit and I said that I was told I didn’t
need any and he said “Oh my, we have a problem.”
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: So, then all you’re waitng for then is just to consider
permission to get the electricity?
MS. HIXSON: Yeah, Duke’s coming; dug up because I didn’t want to. I didn’t want to
put an extra burden on my dad’s electricity so Duke ran a separate line. The lines been
run, the electricity’s been run. We’re waiting for an approval so everything can get hooked
up.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Is this what our inspector recommended?
MS. HIXSON: This is the one that the inspector recommended.
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BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Thank you.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: I’d like to ask her a question.
MS. HIXSON: Yes, sir.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: What size is that shed? How many square feet?
MS. HIXSON: Twelve by sixteen. I was told if it had been twelve by twelve there wouldn’t
have been a problem.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: There wouldn’t be.
MS. HIXSON: But it was twelve by sixteen because I have five sewing machines and a
lot of fabric.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Okay, thank you.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: And full disclosure, I will say that the applicant is correct, that this
was brought to our attention as the result of a call for an inspection and since I’ve been
brought into the applicant has done pretty much everything that we needed done to bring
this into compliance. In terms of the storage shed in the rear, what ultimately happens is,
even though it’s a variance request for the storage shed on the side, we do have to evaluate
the entire site to see what needs to be done to bring it into compliance so that’s why this is
kind of getting pulled into it. None of us were aware this was an issue until we started
addressing the site plan that she had to have done for the submission of the variance because
the variance does require a complete site plan to be submitted.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: So, Chancer the second shed in the back will
require action from the Board?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yes.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: There you go, Mayor Pro Tem. Thank you.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: It’s just something; its just how things played out with this
particular request. If there was, if this was just two storage sheds sitting out of compliance
of the setbacks, I think she could just apply for the variance on both.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Right.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: But because there is an easement there and she did try to go through
the zero-lot line process for the storage shed on the side that would basically allow it to
stay in its location without the variance but she would actually have to work out an
agreement with the neighbor. I think when that fell through and the only other remedy left
was to either move that one or file for the variance; which is why she’s here now but when
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she got the site plan drawn up to file for the variance for that storage shed, it triggered a
conversation about doing it in the rear. I don’t think anybody knew either storage shed
was on the site to be honest with you.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Is there anyone else to speak in favor? Yes? Not in favor?
Okay. Is there anyone else here to speak in favor of the shed approval? If not, is there
anyone to speak to oppose it? Come up and state your name and address in the microphone
please.
MS. SCRIFRES I’m Patricia Scifres and I live at 3501 Golfview, I’m the next-door
neighbor. This storage shed was put there one weekend; one week, and I did not know
about all the laws except for according to our deed when we purchased our property next
door. It says that we’re not allowed to put anything at so many feet away from the fence
and we installed a chain-link fence and we had to put it six inches inside the line and then
right before they took over the payments of the house, the neighbor that was there and I
believe it was his son, had some dogs that kept barking so we had to put a privacy fence
inside our chain-link fence. They were measuring the distance between the fence and
where they’re putting their building based upon our fence which was inside the line. Mr.
Harvey came to my house, knocked on the door and said that I needed to write a letter
stating to someone that I didn’t object to that storage building being built so close to the
property.
I called and asked questions, I’m still up in the air over it because not only is it that close
but we have a dollhouse that was moveable that was too close to the lot and we had to move
it because it was too close to the line when someone come out. We didn’t run any
electricity out to it or anything but we had to move it. It was a good thing that we could
move it. We ended up moving it from one side of the yard over to the other side of the
yard because we have two lots but the shade was there and that’s where my daughter at
that time because we’ve been there thirty-two years, wanted it where it would be in the
shade. So, I’m objecting to this because what’s fair to one person should be fair to
everybody. If I had to move something because I was too close to the line, then everybody
else should have to follow the rules. This no line thing, I didn’t know anything about it but
to come and tell me that I need to sign a letter; write a letter saying that I didn’t object to
it, then I feel like I’ve been lied to for the last three months about this particular shed. Now
the other shed that’s on the property, it was not put there until the person that they assumed
the house from right before they assumed the house put it there. I was not aware it was on
concrete. I was told that it was just another shed so as far as the concrete is concerned, I
don’t know anything about that but I know the metal shed was put there in approximately
2001. Maybe a couple weeks or a month before they took over the payments of the house.
Okay? You got any questions?
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Questions? No, we don’t. Thank you very much. Is there
anyone else who will speak in opposition to this case? Do I need to close this first?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: May I ask Chancer a question?
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BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: I closed the public hearing. Anyone else up here with
questions?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: I have one for Chancer.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Yes, ma’am.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Chancer, in a case like this, what do you recommend?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: I can’t legally give a recommendation.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Oh, you can’t? Okay.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: I will say I did talk to the lady in opposition as well and the
conversation about signing off, that was just basically staff indicating to the applicant that
in order to get the approval of a zero-lot line they would have to get the consent from their
neighbor so that’s what that conversation was about. I’m not sure how it was conveyed or
anything of that nature but I do know that’s what drove the conversation with the zero lot
line request for the storage shed on the side. I think that was her first approach at
remedying the situation and when that fell through, they approached it from a variance
standpoint. I think the variances are a much more expensive process but the zero-lot line
is basically just a subdivision so sometimes they’ll apply that approach first. But the reason
we’re here, it appears that those conversations or discussions fell through.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Thank you.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Mhmm (Acknowledges).
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Is there any other questions? I have a question for our
Attorney. Is there any kind of hardship clause if they want to get this approved that they
could use?
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: Well that’s sort of one of the findings you need to make.
Chancer, if you wanna put those four back up. The first factor is that you know
requiring them to comply with and assuming that you agree to hardship and that’s one
of the factors you need to find in order to grant a variance. Essentially what the variance
is saying is the strict letter of rules (inaudible) you it creates this unnecessary hardship, it’s
not really their fault and allowing a slight variance from the strict letter of rules would not
be consistent with the intent of the ordinance.
MS. HIXSON: And it would fall under hardship because I’ve already spent ten thousand
dollars putting that building there that’s why (inaudible) I’m gonna have to go back and
have it rewired and have the wiring moved and everything else. More concrete laid. I have
to spend another two thousand dollars to have more concrete poured. Have another
electrician come out and move all the outside wiring and all that stuff which is about
another five thousand dollars and like I said, I went to the hardship way because technically
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I don’t have it and the only other alternative is to tear the building down.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Can it be moved? If its new it should be able to be moved.
MS. HIXSON: It’s on a concrete slab. Whenever we, my dad wanted to make sure that no
bugs or anything would deteriorate and when Lowe’s gave us the variance and we had the
man come out and pour the concrete he had it exactly the depth and width of this building.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Okay but they moved the building in there on a truck, right?
MS. HIXSON: No.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Or they built it there?
MS. HIXSON: No, he came out there and built it. He put it together.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Okay.
MS. HIXSON: It took him about two days to three days to finish building it.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Yes, ma’am. Thank you.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWRS: That was one the question I have, Chancer. So that’s
the question I had. Was who constructed this? Who put it up or Lowes did?
MS. HIXSON: Lowe’s has the facilities you see out there. Somebody from Heartland
called me about the installation. I asked them how are they gonna install it. They said
somebody would come up and they would, they literally put the two by fours up and
everything else and then they built it around there. So, they built it in like I said; I think it
was two or three days that it took them to put the building up.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: And they measured it at three-point, three point
five feet?
MS. HIXSON: No.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: No?
MS. HIXSON: It measures three point five feet. The surveyor that I had come out because
that’s what the county told me I had to do –
(Board Member Bellflowers interjects)
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay, so the surveyor was the one that established
three point five?
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MS. HIXSON: Yes.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: And then Lowes just sent a contractor out and they
built it according to that.
MS. HIXSON: They built it according to what theirs was which said three feet. I had the
survey after. I had the survey done whenever I found out that I was short.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Oh, okay, okay. So, you didn’t have the survey
before?
MS. HIXSON: No. The survey was done afterwards to comply with what Cumberland
County told me I had to do to file for a variance. They told me I would have to get a
surveyor come out and survey and I would have to file for the variance and everything. So
I paid the surveyor to come out and survey the property.

BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: So how was the three point five feet determined?
Do you got that, Chance?
MS HIXSON: My guy that laid the concrete said he was gonna give us a little bit more of
an easement from the fence because it slides down on a hill.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Right.
MS. HIXSON: Excuse me. So where it slopes down a little bit from where the trees and
everything behind the fence are growing. It slopes down a little bit so he moved it three in
a half feet. He gave us six inches longer than what Lowe’s said. He thought he was doing
us a favor. If he had moved another two foot in a half, he would’ve really done us a favor
but like I said, Lowe’s said three feet, that’s what we went by. The guy that laid the
concrete put it, the concrete three in a half feet away and that’s where the surveyor said it
was three in a half feet from the property line.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay. So, who told the concrete installer to do it
three in a half feet? Nobody.
MS. HIXSON: My dad. My.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: To her defense, the erroneous group was Lowe’s contractors.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: That’s what I’m trying to get to. Yeah.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: What’s happening is that the site plan that shows three point five
feet is just a result of her property being surveyed to get a site plan to submit for the
variance. Based on my conversation with her, she was told by Lowe’s that it could be put
anywhere so I think Lowe’s had contractors that were unaware of the five foot regulations
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which is how it ended up being put in its current location. It wasn’t officially measure
and deemed to be officially three point five feet until the survey was done as a result of
meeting the requirements of the variance being filed. So, it wasn’t that someone took a
survey and just put it at three point five feet. The survey indicated that the location that
the Lowe’s contractors put it in was at three point five feet. So, when it was put in she was
unaware of the requirements and the contractors who installed it I guess apparently were
unaware of the five foot requirement so it was only when she was coming to call for an
inspection for the electricity for that particular building that our Chief Building Inspector
went out to possibly review it for granting them a permit and realized it didn’t have a
permit and that’s when I got pulled into it. So, our conversation with her led to the
following variance.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: And the value of this building?
MS. HIXSON: Well the building itself cost five. The building itself cost five thousand
Dollars.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MS. HIXSON: It cost a thousand dollars for the concrete slab. It cost me another two
thousand dollars to have the electric put in.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MS. HIXSON: And I had a floor put in which was another twenty-five hundred.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: So, moving this entire shed and the concrete would
be a significant hardship financially for you?
MS. HIXSON: Yes, sir.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MS. HIXSON: Because I used the ten thousand dollars I got from my husband’s insurance
To be able to out that building back there.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay. Chairman, that’s all I had. I only had a
couple extra questions.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Anyone else?
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Thank you very much.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: We’ll close this public hearing. Do we have a motion?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: I’ll make a motion that we close this public hearing.
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BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: I see hands, please. Right hands. The public hearing is
closed. Okay, now do we have a motion?
Board Member Legge closed the public hearing for Case P18-01-HM at 6:37 p.m.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: I’ll make a motion that we approve the variance to
allow a three-point five-foot side yard setback where five feet is required in a PND planned
neighborhood development on zero point three one plus or minus acre located at 5789
Rockfish Road; submitted by Harvey Stewart and Jennifer Stewart.
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: (Inaudible)
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: To include all factors of the variance.
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG:
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: That all four factors of the variance determined to
be present in this case. That’s my motion Chair.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: And just –
(Board Member Legge interjects)
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: We need a second, correct? Do we have to have a second?
Do I have a second for the variance to include all factors of the variance listed on this
screen?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: And they’re all four based on hardship, right?
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Yeah.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Okay, I’ll second.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Got a motion and a second. Do we have a vote please?
Passes.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: And I will note that the condition of approval will more than likely
have to include the relocation of that storage shed in the back. I think that’s something that
has to be a condition regardless of what your particular decision was made. I just want to
speak that into the record.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Okay so we’re saying the three in a half foot setback is being
Approved but the building in the back has to go?
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: You can make the variance condition to include
reasonable conditions that property (inaudible) so if you want to add a condition on
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granting the variance (inaudible).
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Anybody want to make that motion? Would that be
contingent upon the life of that building or when its restored? It’s got to be moved forward
to follow the code?
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: Depends what condition you put on it.
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: Well if she wanted to replace it would she have to come
into compliance?
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Yes, that’s the question.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: She would have to bring the rear storage shed into compliance
immediately. The approval you’re giving her is to keep the storage shed on the side three
point five feet in the current location. But regardless of what your decision is on the side
one, the one in the rear has to actually be brought into compliance.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Do I have a motion to the effect? Want to make it part of
your motion Mr. Bellflowers?
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Let me understand this correctly again, Chair. It
has to be moved or torn down?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: The one on the easement.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: On the easement.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: If your –
(Board Member Bellflowers interjects)
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: And that’s going to be a condition on the vote on
this variance?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Correct.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: It’s gonna have to be removed.
MS. HIXSON: I will have my dad move the one in the back.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yeah.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MS. HIXSON: I can convince him that it needs be moved and he will move it.
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BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Well that will be a condition. I will go ahead and
amend that motion, Chair, to include that as the removal of that shed is a condition to the
approval of this variance.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Do I have a second, Ms. Edwards? Second by Ms. Larson.
Is that correct?
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: I guess (inaudible).
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Just add it to the original.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Okay, the motion as I understand it is we approve the three
in a half foot variance on the new shed but the old shed has to go away from the easement.
Do we have a vote on that?
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Chair, I think we’ve got a issue with the time limit.
When does it have to be removed.
MR MCLAUGHLIN: When she applies for a permit.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: When she applies for a permit.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yeah. When she comes to apply for a permit to get a legal permit
for the location of the storage shed at three point five, a condition of that permit being
issued requires that the rear shed be brought into compliance.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: It will have to be removed before she applies for
the permit.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: These are considered conditions of approval.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: So ultimately what will happen is when our Inspector goes out to
give her the electrical permit for the three-point five fence, he as a condition of the other
one being moved, that will be part of the verification process.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: You understand exactly?
MS. HIXSON: Yeah.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: You understand exactly what the amendments;
conditions gonna be?
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MS. HIXSON: It’s gonna take a week or two to get that moved because I know my dads
going to want to put more concrete down. But I’ll.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yeah that’s fine. Yeah.
BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Okay. Okay, Chair.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Can we have a vote on that please. Everybody in favor raise
your right hand. It passes four-zero with Commissioner Pro Tem Mike Mitchell abstaining.
Is there anything else? That case be closed. Pass it back to Mr. Mitchell.

b.

P17-02-HM: CONSIDERATION OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW
TWO BILLBOARDS IN A C(P) PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ON
6.74+/- ACRES, LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF NC HWY 162
(GEORGE OWEN ROAD), WEST OF SR 1141 (CUMBERLAND ROAD);
SUBMITTED BY THOMAS L. BRADFORD ON BEHALF OF ELMWOOD
PARTNERS, LLC (OWNER) AND JOSEPH STANCIL ON BEHALF OF
INTERSTATE OUTDOOR INC (AGENT). (HOPE MILLS).

CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Thank you. We’ll go ahead and open up Case P17-02-HM.
Chairman Mitchell opened the public hearing for Case P17-02-HM at 6:40 p.m.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: You have to swear.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Consideration of a special use permit to allow two billboards
in a C(P) planned commercial district on six point seven four plus acres, located on the
north side of North Carolina Highway 162 (George Owen Road), west of state road 1141
(Cumberland Road); submitted by Thomas L. Bradford on behalf of Elmwood Partners,
LLC (Owner) and Joseph Stancil on behalf of Interstate Outdoor, Inc. (Agent). (Hope
Mills).
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: You gotta swear in the new group.
Town Clerk Starling sworn in Craig Justus, 11 N. Markle, Asheville, NC 28801; Joseph
Stancil, 2525 Buffalo Road, Smithfield, NC 27577; Paul Cuomo, 223 Commerce Street,
Suite E, Greenville, NC 27859; Warren Stancil, 154 Vorcelli Drive, Clayton, NC 27527
and Betty Lynd, 130 Gillespie Street, Fayetteville, NC 28301.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Just waiting on you, Mr. McLaughlin.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: The Manager of Lowe’s is over there. Hometown friend of mine.
Sorry about that. Before we hear this next case because of something unique I would like
to give some testimony. This case, P17-02-HM was previously heard on December 8, 2017
for two billboards but was denied. Since that time, representatives from Interstate Outdoor
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have filed an appeal to Superior Court and I guess you guys ultimately came up with a
settlement agreement that I would like to pass out now that has been fully executed.
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: When Chancer is passing that out, I’ll just add that the
settlement agreement is essentially the vehicle violation where back here it would allow
some sort of agreement with regards with how this is presented to the Board. We still need
to go through the full process (inaudible).
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yeah. Now what you are, what he’s talking about is a substantial
change is as a result of the denial of the Board of Adjustment the applicant filed the appeal
but under provisions of section 102A-1707; E13, it states that in the event of a denial the
Board of Adjustment shall not consider resubmission of the application for the same
special use permit on the same property without substantial material change concerning the
property and the application. So, what you have is before we can really, actually hear this
case you guys have to actually make a motion to determine if what you see with the revised
site plan is considered a substantial change. If you do agree to that substantial change, you
can make the motion to approve and then you can proceed with hearing this case. If that
is not determined by you guys then the case cannot be heard. But the settlement agreement
that we just. That I just passed out that’s executed does outline this very fact and I think it
does show the last sheet in this agreement is the revised site plan. If you guys do move
that this is a substantial change, I will go through what those changes are as a part of my
testimony.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELLL: Do we have a motion to approve the proposed site plan
changes?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: I’d like to make a motion to approve.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: A substantial change.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Okay.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Whatever he says, right?
BOARD MEMBER LARSON: So be it.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Yeah. Exactly what he said.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Okay. Any discussion?
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Second.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: All in favor, raise your right hand. Okay.
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: In the interest of time, we’re not gonna go through; it’s the same
presentation as last time where it just talks about the subject property location. But what
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I would want to do is just to go over what those substantial changes are. Read them into
the record. In terms of the billboards, the number of billboards will be reduced from two
to one. The size to be reduced from five hundred square feet to three hundred and seventy
eight square feet. The previous request was for a twelve by; was two twelve by forty
billboards. This request would be one ten point five by thirty-six-foot billboard. The height
would not exceed thirty-five feet in height. The sidewalks would not be required and the
setbacks would not be required. So those constitute all of the changes that staff would like
to at least note for the record. I’d like to open up the floor to any questions that you may
have for myself, for the attorney, for Interstate Outdoor.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: If we can hear from all those that are for this special use permit.
ATTORNEY JUSTUS: Hello, good to see everyone again. I’m with the Van Winkle Law
Firm; here on behalf of Interstate Outdoor. I think Chancer did a very fine job of explaining
the modification. I just want to be sure for my own organization that we are tendering the
release and settlement agreement as part of the record. I believe this is my copy but I’m
just letting the record reflect that I was handed this. I believe this is again the same copy
that you have a fully executed copy of the site plan attached as exhibit one. Just for full
recitation of the modification to the application appears on page. I don’t know why the
agreement starts on page seven but there you have it. It would be the second page of this
document. It reads, lets see. “In lieu of two billboards Interstate Outdoor may construct
on the property, one billboard with two faces, not to exceed 378 square feet for each panel,
consistent with the site plan attached as “exhibit one” and such billboard shall be permitted
at any time to utilize, or be constructed or reconstructed to utilize, digital technology (i.e.
digital face panels), if desired by the Petitioner Interstate Outdoor. The sign shall not
exceed thirty-five feet in height. There shall be no other conditions associated with the
permit, including sidewalks or setbacks which are not required in this matter.”
So, the site plan depicts of course the proposed location and so that’s a full recitation of the
modification. We believe that the application that’s modified meets all the requirements
of your ordinance that were the tone of our application in section 102A-1407. I’m not
going to go through each one of those but those are the technical standards that were in
place at the time of our application and we believe that we meet all of those requirements.
In terms of the general requirements which are those general, more subjective requirements
about public health or safety for example, we want to reiterate the use is not a traffic
generating use. Its not an ignition, it doesn’t give off smoke or anything considered the
normally noxious. This standard number two of the general standards is that it meets the
required conditions which we believe it does. Paul here who you met before is going to
speak on the property value standard. If you recall from our Jackson Estate, LLC
application; when I was here last, we talked about the Land Use Plan and how your plan
focuses on promotion of the economy and we consistent with that, we believe we are doing
that.
To give you a little bit of context I’ll; I think you all are very familiar with this location but
for the record can look in, peek in on this. I’m gonna hand out an aerial photograph along
with the zoning.
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BOARD MEMBER BELLFLOWERS: Thank you, sir.
ATTORNEY JUSTUS: The location of the proposed outdoor advertising sign is
sandwiched between a Dixie Yarn Manufacturing facility which is a pretty large
manufacturing facility which is good and it’s next to the, the property is next to the Exxon
convenience store. The property zoning is either for the manufacturing use next door or
is commercial. So, we do believe that both the zoning and the actual uses of the property
are compatible with the proposed billboard. At this time, I’m gonna ask Paul to come up
and speak briefly on the standard dealing with property value.
MR. CUOMO: Good evening Mr. Chairman, members of the Board. My name is Paul
Cuomo, I’m a General Real Estate Appraiser. My office is located at 223 Commerce Street
in Greenville, North Carolina at Suite E. We specialize in appraisal of complex and general
real estate generally with regard to real estate litigation or land use planning for different
types of real estate, generally non-residential. I last appeared before you in May of this
past year in regards to a permit for the Jackson Estates LLC which you granted which was
a similar permit; special use.
With regard to my scope of work and my testimony this evening, I’ll be testifying regarding
item number three which is “the use will maintain or enhance the value of adjoining or
abutting properties” or that “the use is a public necessity.” In doing the study that I created
on this property right here and I will give you, submit a copy that I’m presenting to you as
soon as I’m done for you to review and look at. I’m just doing this so I have one to go by.
But what I look at is, you look at what is the neighborhood surrounding the subject and I
won’t repeat what Craig just said because basically it would be the same thing, I’m gonna
tell you. What surrounding uses are. There’s three, basically four stages of a neighborhood
they’re growth, equilibrium, decline, revitalization. So, unless you live in Antarctica, this
is true universally, worldwide on planet earth. It’s not something I made up, it’s a fact.
This neighborhood in particular is probably in a state of equilibrium because we’ve got the
yarn plant in front of it which is somewhat abandoned. And you’ve got the gas station
behind it and the subject itself is unimproved land and if you’re standing at the or sitting at
the stoplight you’re looking to the right or the left its pretty much unimproved until you
get off to the exit or you go up to where I believe it’s where the church is at.
So, that being said, the neighborhood cycle generally follows what’s known as the highest
and best use of the land. Craig talked a little bit about what the zoning was permitted on
the land, either industrial or commercial. It meets the elements for this plan being
physically possible, legally permissible meaning it is not against the grain on your Land
Use Plan. It appears to be in compliance with that and you put restrictions on it, that’s
what you’re there for; there are certain restriction that you’re able to put in place. So, in
terms of being financially feasible, the property is pretty much in a flood zone. A lot of it
is there, it’s pretty much vacant. The highest and best of it right now probably would be
to put a billboard on the property. It would be financially feasible to do so. It would also
generate income for the property and revenue, taxes, etc. And that would bring me to my
final element of highest and best use; would be maximumly productive. So that use would
in my opinion meet those elements. Then there is the final portion of this is how do you
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determine value? as I said before in my presentation in May and this is; one of the things
is that how value is determined involving real estate or involving improvement of real
estate is there have to be certain elements of it. You must have land, you must have labor,
you must have capital, you must have coordination. If you don’t have those four elements,
you don’t have value. Putting the billboard on the property, all four of those elements
would be better exceeded without question.
I did a case study and market analysis back in May. I have included that in the package for
your review again. Because we’re in probably in October and the data usually falls on
about a six to eighteen-month lag with commercial real estate, it’s not unusual. So, I did
some more research and updated a few things. Pretty much there had been no, there’s been
no real change from when I testified to my last study in May on similar portions of
commercial sales and the commercial market. So, the health is pretty much where it was
before and that’s not unusual within a six month to a year time frame. You know
commercial trends tend to follow eighteen months, two years and maybe longer because of
the permitting process, due diligence and other things.
With regard to the similar properties in Hope Mills that are in proximity to the subject;
what I have and you’ll be able to look at them in here or the. I looked at the market patterns
around. There’s about thirty-eight to forty commercial sales that are either within a mile
or two, possibly three, depending how far you drive and which direction you go into of
these various subjects that I’ve used. The first one is on Hope Mills Road and that’s Lamar
Digital, that’s the first sign and its pretty much similar background and again, I will give
you this study to look at and you can look at. They’re labeled in the study as examples
one, two and three. The second one is on Raeford Road, that is another. And the third one
is on George Owen Road and Hope Mill Road, that would be the Jackson Estates LLC
permit that you gave. So pretty much what I tried to do, if you notice and again, I will
present you with these. There is a pattern around each one of these that’s very similar to
our subject. There’s some woodland around it, some vacant land, the neighborhood is in
equilibrium; there’s some commercial around it; there may be some industrial around it.
On this one in particular, the third one has I think a mini storage around it, I call that
industrial so, you may call that something a little different. And the ones with Jackson
Estates LLC has a ABC Store retail behind it. Our subject has a gas station behind it. So,
what I’m doing is giving you some matched pairs. Matched Pairs are a lot like your body,
most of you come with one arm, the right one, the left one, the right foot, the left foot. So,
even though there are two different types of feet, we’ve got two; most of the time we have
two feet, their left and their right so we want to try and match pairs so that’s basically what
I’m doing. There is no, there’s never any perfect matched pair for anything.
So, effectively what I did was I studied those properties, I studied everything around them.
I studied what sales they have and there was no impact from those properties that I could
see that would lead me to believe that the subject would be any harm to anyone else. My
conclusion is that the subject is in compliance with your ordinance and particularly in
compliance with the section of my scope of work. So, you have any questions I’ll be happy
to entertain them.
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BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: I don’t.
ATTORNEY JUSTUS: That concludes our presentation. We respectfully request that you
grant the modified site plan.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: I’ll guess we’ll hear from the other witnesses. Board, approval
of the special use permit as modified? Anyone else for? Have you signed up to speak for
this? Anyone else for speaking in favor of?
MS. LYND: Well I wouldn’t say I’m in favor or opposition. I’m just speaking as County
staff so I don’t know where I fall in the line-up here. But we just want to say as typical
with special use permits, the site plan would have come to us first and we would have
reviewed it and brought it back before the Board. So, while we understand you’re moving
at the direction of the Town Attorney, County staff just wants it on record that we believe
you all should make the change or substantial material change decision and the site plan be
submitted to us for review and that County staff has not reviewed the site plan before you
all. We just want that on record.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Okay. Thank you, Betty.
MS. LYND: You’re welcome.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Do we need to call anymore witnesses against? We’re okay?
Okay, do I have a motion to close the public hearing?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Make a motion to close.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: All in favor? Okay. Any discussion? If not, do we have any
motions?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Like I said, I customarily do the four criterion that govern special
use permits is up on the board. Regular majority vote is required.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: So, you want four motions or one combined? With the
criterion.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Want me to do it?
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: I prefer not to make motions when I’m Chair, just my own
thing.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: I’ll make a motion then. Want me to take each one
separate or can I combine them?
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Combine them.
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MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Just say all four criterion.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: With the new criterion and all that’s been presented and
all, do I have to read each one of them or just say that?
TOWN ATTORNEY HARTZOG: I think you can say all four of the special use permit
(inaudible).
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: I’ll ditto what he just said.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: Okay.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Is that for case number.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: That’s for.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: 17-02? P17-02?
MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Yes.
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Yes, sir.
BOARD MEMBER LEGGE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: We don’t need a second do we, in a Board of Adjustment? We
do not? Okay. Any discussion? All in favor, raise your right hand. Having passed fiveo. Thank you.
Motion made by Board Member Edwards to approve Case P17-02-HM with the significant
changes meeting all four criterion required for a Special Use Permit.
CHAIRMAN MITCHELL: And do we have a motion to adjourn the Board of Adjustment?
BOARD MEMBER EDWARDS: Motion to adjourn.
4.

ADJOURNMENT.

Motion made by Board member Edwards and carried unanimously, to adjourn the meeting.
Chairman Mitchell adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m.

____________________________________
Mike Mitchell, Chairman
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ATTEST:

___________________________
Jane G. Starling, CMC
Town Clerk
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TAB 2

Meeting Date: _June 13, 2019

AGENDA FORM

TO:

Melissa P. Adams, Town Manager

FROM:

Chancer F. McLaughlin, Development and Planning
Administrator

SUBJECT:

Board of Adjustment Case No. P19-01-HM

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
P19-01-HM: CONSIDERATION OF A SIDEWALK VARIANCE IN A C(P)
PLANNED COMMERICAL DISTRICT ON 5.96+/- ACRES, LOCATED AT 3333 N
MAIN STREET; SUBMITTED BY J. ARTHUR SMITH ON BEHALF OF HOPE
MILLS INVESTMENTS, LLC (OWNER) AND DARREN BALSAMO ON BEHALF
OF LEVEL 5 TRAMPOLINE PARK, LLC (AGENT). (HOPE MILLS)
STAFF RECOMMENDATION, IF APPLICABLE:
There is no Town of Hope Mills staff recommendation for the case in question.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
There is no Town of Hope Mills recommended action for the case in question.
FISCAL IMPACT:
_______ Currently Budgeted _________ Requires budget amendment ____

ATTACHMENTS:
Attached are the following:
• Memo from the Cumberland County Planning Staff
• Memo from Town of Hope Mills Planning Staff
• Site Photographs
• Original Zoning Permit Approval
This agenda form has been reviewed by:
Initial & Date
Town Manager
MA 06/12/19
Finance Director
Town Attorney
Department Head (s)
Town Clerk
JGS 6/11/19
Development & Planning Administrator
CFM – 4/10/19

X____ No fiscal impact

TO:

Melissa P. Adams, Town Manager

FROM:

Chancer F. McLaughlin, Development & Planning Administrator,
Town of Hope Mills

RE:

Board of Adjustment Case P19-01-HM

The following memo provides general information tied to a Variance request to eliminate the
requirement of sidewalks.
Request
The applicant is seeking a variance to not install sidewalks along NC HWY 59 (N Main Street)
and along Davis Street.
Background
The subject property is located at 3333 N Main Street and is zoned under C(P) Planned
Commercial district regulations. The site is developed with a shopping center with a Surge
Trampoline establishment that was approved for a site plan approval on September 25, 2017.
Pursuant to the approval of the site plan by the Town of Hope Mills Board of Commissioners,
5 foot sidewalks are required along N. Main Street with 4 foot sidewalks required along Davis
Street in compliance with the Town of Hope Mills Subdivision Ordinance.
The applicant was granted a temporary Certificate of Occupancy by the Town of Hope Mills
Inspections Department to allow the establishment to open while the application for a variance
was being made. Upon a decision by the Board of Adjustment the Inspections Department will
either remove the temporary certificate of occupancy or extend it further to allow time for the
sidewalks to be installed. Staff has included site photographs to provide more insight on the area
of request.
Staff Recommendation:
No staff recommendation is required for quasi-judicial proceedings.
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